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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 76, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 53 years’ experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 74, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 53 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 58, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group.
He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 34 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 46, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited, Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited and Chongging Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
and is responsible for sales and marketing of plastic materials in the Group's
trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering from Queen’s
University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a Master degree of Business and
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He joined the Group in 2004 and has over 18 years' experience in business
management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr. HUI Sai
Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan
Kit (who is the senior management of the subsidiaries of the Company) and Mr.

HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the Director of the Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 53, is the Business Development Manager and is

responsible for market exploration and business development of the Group.
He holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 26 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 49, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 23 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiaries of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since Ist April 2003. He is also the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Ho is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences and is
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange").
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAGRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 9th February 2009. He is also the member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and also the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ching
currently serves as a financial consultant. He also serves as the Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 754), Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited (stock code: 737) and Luzhou Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1983), all of
them are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Ching was an independent non-executive director
of Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93) from
November 2016 to April 2022 and also AMVIG Holdings Limited (stock code:
2300) from March 2020 to April 2021 respectively, both of them are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ching obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ching has more than 30 years of

experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since Ist April 2020. He is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is the
Business Manager of an international insurance company in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor degree of Science with Honours in Applied Chemistry from Hong
Kong Baptist University and a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He is also a Fellow Chartered Financial Practitioner
and a Chartered Life Practitioner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services
Association. Mr. Yu started the career in plastics industry and had accumulated
more than 20 years’ experiences in the industry, which included holding
managerial positions in various multinational companies for plastic materials sales

and product marketing in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Tat Ching, aged 68, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong)
Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and is responsible for the

overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies.

Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK"). He joined the Group as a co-
founder and an executive director of the above mentioned group of companies

in 1997, and has over 42 years' experience in plastic industries globally.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng has held several key positions in various
multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and product

marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 50, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).

EEREEEEAGRE

SEEEEAE
REELRE 685 DREIBRERER
A RETIREBR(EB)BRAT - R
ERTIIEBHABERAFIRFIIREER
(EE)ERARZESRER  AF Lt
EBN R BEEmEREE -

BRERBERNXAREREFEZENE L
BA(EBER  BIERTR) BN
—HANEFMAREE ¥/ LAKER
BZBIMARMITESRZ — - WRERBXE
ERERAN+ —F&R -

RIMAREER - REEGREEBERD
FEE2RR BETAMEIRZHZH
EREMMIGHEREETIE -

FFABSEAE 505 D EBREBER
HBRARZARKE  BE LiBMEME
RitE e NI TIHER - #HE
NREMAE REEHAZREANBREZ
XEBLTE - FR—ANNFMARE
B EEELTSEETERESE_+H
FRR - FFAGREERFFERICE(ERR
A2 EE)M R FMEF AR ERFTARE
FE(MERARBZER)INILE ©

ANNUAL REPORT FEIRE 22/23

7




CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2023. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,177,827,000 (2022: HK$1,738,775,000) and loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$52,007,000 (2022: profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$56,598,000). Loss per share for the year were
HK14.09 cents (2022: earnings per share HKI5.33 cents). To retain sufficient
capital for future business development, the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

In 2022/23, the external environment was complicated, with major changes in
the global political and economic landscapes. Geopolitical conflicts, high inflation
risk and the US Federal Reserve raising interest rate continually exacerbated
financial market volatility, and overall market demand was weak. Moreover, with
upstream oil prices falling during the year under review posing pressure on the
prices of plastic raw materials and products, the Group faced many challenges in

developing business.

With uncertain economic situation and sluggish consumption sentiment in the
market, customers were cautious in placing orders and opted generally for a
low-inventory strategy, and that affected the overall sales of the Group. For the
year ended 30th June 2023, total turnover of the Group was HK$1,177,827,000
(2022: HK$1,738,775,000), a 32.3% drop against last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group's overall gross profit declined by
51.3% year-on-year to HK$ 147,704,000 (2022: HK$303,134,000), mainly due to
decrease in overall sales. Gross profit margin narrowed by 4.9 percentage points
year-on-year to 12.5%. Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$52,007,000 (2022: Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$56,598,000). The decrease was mainly due to lower turnover and higher
financial costs. Basic loss per share was HK14.09 cents (2022: basic earnings per
share of HK15.33 cents).

To reserve funds for business development, the Board of Directors does not
recommend payment of a final dividend (2022: a final dividend of HK2.0 cents

per share).

Affected by the global economic downturn, domestic market demand was frail.
Turnover of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resins business fell
by 17.8% year-on-year to HK$292,047,000 (2022: HK$355,172,000), and gross
profit margin was basically the same as last year. In addition, with the US dollar
staying strong, cost pressure continued, which led to a 25.4% decline in profit
before taxation HK$15,000,000 (2022: HK$20,106,000). The Group's colorants,
pigments and compounded plastic resins business customer base remained
stable, covering industries such as automotive applications, food packaging, and
construction materials. However, albeit all COVID-19 related restrictions being
lifted in the first quarter of 2023, with many industries not having recovered as
quickly as expected, market sentiment has turned cautious. As such, the Group
resorted to strict inventory control and worked hard to sustain capital strength,

preparing to capture new opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

During the year under review, despite the Group maintaining close relationship
with existing customers and continuing to expand its customer base, customer
demand remained feeble with the market adopting generally the low inventory
strategy. It was thus unable for the Group to dilute fixed costs and rigid
expenditures. Therefore, turnover from the plastic trading business dropped
by 32% year-on-year to HK$747,248,000 (2022: HK$1,098,354,000), with
gross profit margin shrank by 4.9 percentage points. Loss before taxation was
HK$70,704,000 (2022: profit before taxation of HK$23,308,000). Coping with
the sluggish market, the Group continued to strengthen ties with large toy
manufacturers and other customers, so that it may seize business opportunities
when the market revives. At the same time, it worked hard on diversifying
its markets strategically, providing raw materials to manufacturers in the
photovoltaic and new energy vehicles industries, to the end of expanding

revenue sources.

In addition, the consumption sentiment slump in the market led to a 51.4%
decline year-on-year of turnover of the engineering plastic business to
HK$ 138,532,000 (2022: HK$285,249,000), with gross profit margin squeezed
by 7.1 percentage points and profit before taxation plummeted 85.9% to
HK$6,535,000 (2022: HK$46,339,000). The end products of this business
included general household appliances such as household products, electrical
appliances and high-end kitchenware. Although consumption sentiment is
currently affected by external factors, the Group has kept up its high emphasis
on maintaining customer relations, conducting in-depth research on the needs
and expectations of end customers, plus watching closely market trends, so as to

prime itself for market recovery.

Prospects

Stepping into the second half of 2023, global economic uncertainties prevail
and the energy landscape is seeing drastic changes. Currently, Mainland China is
promoting green and low-carbon development along the entire energy supply
chain, and concepts such as green design, green packaging and green logistics
have many backers. The Group will therefore seize the strategic opportunities
and adopt “Three New Strategies” encompassing new materials, new customers
and new markets to help it expand into new areas and realise corporate

transformation and upgrade.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

Actively responds to industry policies and focuses on new material
development

At the launch of relevant industry policies, companies have become more
demanding when it comes to sustainable development and supply chain
management. The Group, noticing that customers are still keen to find
alternatives for raw materials, believes it is the right time to promote the use
of environmentally friendly materials. It is also encouraged to see its subsidiaries
obtaining the ISCC PLUS certification this year. Looking ahead, the Group, as
a certified supplier, will focus on developing sustainable materials and keep
promoting projects in relation to such as environmentally friendly plastic
materials, and constantly look for innovative environmental protection solutions
that can fill gaps in the market. Its hope is to establish a good reputation, thereby

become customers’ preferred partner in sustainable development.

Flexibly copes with market environment and strives to explore new customer
sources

With the market recently affected by the external environment, the Group will
cope by adopting flexible strategies. It will pay attention to improving internal
management efficiency, covering production, operation, logistics, supply chain
and financial management, and also strengthen cooperation with existing
customers and suppliers to ensure steady order inflow. Furthermore, it is actively
exploring new customer sources in industries such as photovoltaic and new
energy vehicles, so as to expand its business footprint and create new revenue

sources.

Actively identifies business partners and expands into the new ASEAN market
In addition to developing the Greater China region market, the Group is
considering finding business partners who can bring synergies to its businesses,
and will keep its finger on the pulse of the market and foray into the ASEAN
market. It has already sent dedicated teams to various ASEAN countries to carry
out market research and identify business opportunities. Its hope is to capture
market share with high-quality raw materials and achieve sustainable business
growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

Actively identifies business partners and expands into the new ASEAN market
(Continued)

With a history of more than 50 years, the Group has made it through numerous
economic cycles, kept pressing forward amid different challenges, which would
be impossible without the support of customers, leadership of the management
team and the hard work of all employees. In the years ahead, the Group, as
always, will adopt sound business strategies and prudent financial management
approaches to ensure it can provide customers with quality and cost-effective

services, as well as create value that all stakeholders can share.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June
2023, the Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$626,402,000 of which approximately HK$329,262,000 have been utilised and
were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges
on certain property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights,
investment properties and restricted bank deposits in Mainland China and Hong
Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, 17, and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements). The Group's cash and cash equivalents as at 30th June
2023 amounted to approximately HK$150,637,000. The Group's gearing ratio as
at 30th June 2023 was approximately 66.3%, based on the total bank borrowings
of approximately HK$338,922,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$511,349,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company’s contingent
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 33 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Continued)

At 30th June 2023, the maximum notional amount for the outstanding
settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order
to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations is as

follows:

SNER S (4)
REREEPRZIVERR - AEET T
SMNERBOH RZBZ=FXA=+
A AEEREZ RRRBREREASHE
mT

Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTUEAZET

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
156,000 358,800

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2023, the Group had approximately 614 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group'’s customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2023
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2023 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 14
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets; and
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.
The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to 14 and 69 to 190,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2023 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEVV (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 61.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2023, the Directors resolved not to declare

any interim dividend for the six months ended 3 1st December 2022.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 29 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2023, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$69,574,000 (2022: HK$72,851,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 191.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 17th November 2022, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company

on 22nd November 2012. Under the terms of the Scheme, the Directors may, at

their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe

for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

0]

(ii)

(i)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2022.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed |% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(v)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of

HK$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between [7th November 2022 and [6th November 2032 to offer the

grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 are set out

in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen

Mr. HUI Man Wai

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*

Mr. CHING Yu Lung*

Mr. YU Chi Kwong*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen and Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A.4.3 as set out in Appendix 4 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul as an Independent

Non-executive Director at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2023, the interest and short positions of each Director and

chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2023

EERRETRAERAAQT
s H AR R B X B IR A K
BEE R /AR

RZZEZ=FRA=+H KAARSE=S
REBITHRABRAR R SEAFHEE
B(ExREFRBMEGERO(TESFHRER
BIEXVED) BRARNAB ARz ERmKD
BN REBEESHEGRAF2GFE
Aftz Bt - MR K& E %5 2 e BOR
B SRBEETRAUZ EMARERELT
EHERX AT (EETH D ERAR
AN RATERRELT

RZB-=FXRNA=Z+BEXLQAAEREE
0.1I0BTZEER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BBz ARARNEE

Personal interests  Corporate interests ~Family interests ~ Other interests
Name of Directors Esps AR EEER ZRER Hitg s
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FHIREE Long Positions #f & 20,137,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEE R Long Positions #7A& 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) —
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFAREE Long Positions 47 A& - - — (0)
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAEEE Long Positions 1A — — — (d)
Mr. HUI Man Wai FNERE Long Positions #1 & 250,000 — — (e)
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERBSTHRAEBRADQH
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, o A BB EE R AR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE EBECERR XA
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (#)

(Continued)

Notes: FfsE -

(a) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a (@ ZERMHF 2196721,5008% T3 B Good
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). Benefit Limited ([ Good Benefit ] )35 © Ever
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly. Win Limited ([ Ever Win1)#8 Good Benefit
By zO+ R — (5L (e) © Lok
6,000,000 BEARAS B Ever Win BB F A ©

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr. Ever WnE B EEIMTZ ERBEHG

HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 50,001 BREIETH IR AREA o St HA%E

class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win REBBS DA% A Ever Win AREE

respectively. BT A] H AR A& B8 S AR 19 33,957 AR I 5
fi% o

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which by FZFERMD PR 21967215008 J5 i Good
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In Benefit# A ° Evergrow Company Limited
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow]) ¥ % Good BenefitE 5

2P+ I — (i) wa
2,082,000 &% {5 B8 Evergrow B4 A ©

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Evergrow & iR E {E | il 7t 2 & 8 A% 1
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non- 50,000 IR B ETRI A EHF A © FTEIE R A&
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow. S ¥ B Evergrow AREEEA] A A

fE BB 15 30,823 % ©

(c) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever () ZEWRMTF 2196721,500% J B Good

Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Benefit 4 ° Ever Win#i48 Good Benefit
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are BozM+hRE —#Em(WiEeE) - it
held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen. 4h 6,000,000 A% AR {5 1 Ever Win B # #

A ° Ever Win B EE | Mtz E@RG%
3BT AREERSES -

(d) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever (d) ZERMDTF Z196721,500% J B Good

Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Benefit 4 ° Ever Win#i48 Good Benefit
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are BozH+hRE —#Em(MiEeE) - it
held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey. 4h 6,000,000 A% AR {5 H Ever Win B # #

A o Ever Win B EE | Mtz E@RG%
3BREATAREERSE -
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2023, are as follows:

EERRETRAERAAQT
s H AR R B X B IR A K
BEE R /AR

(4&)

(e) EF Good Benefit(R—ZE==4,XA
— T HEARAQR 196721500 B )%

R EmE=MNT

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors BEEHR RHEE BEREIHL
Mr. HUI Sai Chung Eiguaibtaa 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEL . 5 A4 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai RFXE KA 360 3.6%
Others HAth 620 6.2%
10,000 100.0%

As at 30th June 2023, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

RZZ_=FA=+H " TIEEH
EREBBRHMBERARERERERLE
Bty s MEATLEET Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited AJ 88 £
MEIRFRRIER D 2 A

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

BEEREEELERHHE
Personal interests Other interests
Name of Directors BEEHA (PN £ Hih s
Mr. HUI Sai Chung ST RS A4 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong T S A 200,000 50,000 (ii)

Notes:

() These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i)~ These shares are held by Evergrow.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BT -
()  ZERMDHEEver WinfH ©

(i) ZERM B Evergrow A ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2023, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2023, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 34%

Five largest suppliers combined 77%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 13% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2023 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung
and Mr. YU Chi Kwong. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2023 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

EERERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the "CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2023, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg
ESEER ESEEERESHERE

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

ARBMNEZTSAFHEHENRITNER
MEPRTEFEIFENTEZNES TR
O BREANFRFE4IZENEERE
EMEEEIN  EEEGKE 2HWEEMR
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc B A% RESKHMEKR FEEZH
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total of B B2 UTHSEEBRESERFAER
EBLABTER NFRN EFgaH
ROIZREHESTSEE  —AFHES

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no

financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board

three regular board meetings, three ad-hoc board meetings and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

out below: RN RERAE EF2EKNE
FHEHENT -
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance $5l Attendance BR3R  Attendance
Attendants HEE flgrs HERE SFRE HEAY AR HERH™
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) THIREE(EE) 3 3
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TR
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (5| F/E# Z EHAEHE) 3 3 3 3 I |
Mr. NG Chi Ming REHLE 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen AL 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Man Wai AXEEE 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FAELE 3 3 3 3 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFATEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul RSk 3 3 | |
Mr. CHING Yu Lung IRIEER 3 3 | |
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REXEE 3 3 | |
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LEXERERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) Exgm

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ Exody EZSoEREBHERY
attendance (Continued) (#&)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across EEEUOE I REBANK - BNERRE
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one- BEEeRBARE 2B - HAKBER
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least HFELEMRBIEIIOAKEEEKERD
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional BE=ZD—RBMIFNTEFIHRTE - &
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies PE—NUBUFNTESHEEEAN SR
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which RMBERBHEEER ZEZEREHN
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications. FMEB4ZH  ERHISEFZZK

fefe - EXANH - ERRER -

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term BYEMITERDIREBEARARB 2 AFIMAEA
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. BERA - EREEARBESE -

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three RAAREEERB=2BYFRTESR
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing BEMARASEIIRERE 2 FEBE L IE®
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the RE -EEGOTHEREZE LM - Wi
independent non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of EEBBIFNTEEFHE EHRAMR

the Listing Rules. EZBIATL °

Role and Function AGKBE

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive EEZeHAEEREERZRTHTES
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its EEEERBAE EBEREBHEHPEEFEZ
approval. The principal functions of the Board are: EEN  EFSNTIZREERE

® {0 establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company o BRUARRAIREEEMERT MK

and set the objectives of the management; EERARZ:

®*  to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment e HAEFEREE FEFEARRELE
proposals; BIRR

®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions, . AREMFERPRAELE EAX
directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and 5 BEZZE RRENMEFIK

&
REEH R

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, L RERARTEAIEET - BRE
risk management, financial reporting and compliance. B B mERETELRS A
=
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EERERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEgW
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements EERMBRRAAEBENES

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements EERNEBEREARAIRAEEHB
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on Bk BEZTZ=FA=1+HLZ
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the MBREASRSELELAGRRY  TEE
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2023, and of the Group's profit RAFREADN G EAEEEBHBARR
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements RREBE_Z_=FXA=1THILFE
for the year ended 30th June 2023, the members of the Board have selected W BHRAE  EZRKEEREENS
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended STERER - i B FE AR AR B IR R (L
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial BT =FRNA=THLNEEYE
statements for the year ended 30th June 2023, have applied them consistently WAM T HEAO I REETEABRR
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made Hh) - AR B IEAE RMAE - HEERE
are prudent and reasonable. HEBHET -

During the year ended 30th June 2023, the management provided all members REZ_Z_="FA=THFE &8
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 EBREFAHNECIDENESEMENXE
of the CG Code. BRARMES -

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 58 to SNEERZ BB R EH N FES8E60 A ©
60.

Continuing Professional Development RFEEXRR

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr. NG Chi SRESF(HHIRLEE FEEE R
Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, EEASE - FFAREELE  FFUELLE T
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong have ABELAE - AIRESE - BUOEEERSR
participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business TN A ) B DRI R A &Y 86 15 2 B 3 R
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending NRAIERNEREY  NERRERER
seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and EBZBH  SHEELEHEXERBEM
self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure RS - TEY - @& MRIE 0 BRLE

that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. NEE - AR B 3 ab P89 &0 58 R : 1o
WiERMPIEEESELEMMEREBRN
R o

ri‘t ANNUAL REPORT FE#]R%E 22/23 33

e\



34

Corporate Governance Report
EERERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development (Continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on Ist January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director’s qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE

A7

-

EE2H)

FEREXBR(A)
RRARMAEEE2RESLHNEYES
PINFEEXRER 2B - RBEE-F
TZFEARNAZTRLEFERAREELREFE
HWEAL AR RHFRAESREHE LN
MAIRERT Z @%R - B2 R ARRE RO B AE(E
P #} o

ESNERREEMR
ARBEMETRIRE  HEZFHACET
RIEEZEERHEENRR  XEF
FRBARBEELRE -

REESHEE
REESNBRELETERMNAN_-F
—NF-A—BRER  BARAIESR
ZEg([(RERZBEDAEHT -

ESREER
REAZEQEASERIIEVBEZTANE
ETEREEENE  EEERZEEER

NEZHEBERZ  RBRZBEGTAREER
REZeXBREMESHEA - 1IN
REZBEHEEZEHARARREHR
AABBRRIEREEESHRFOHLEARE
FRZERRZEEANE -

MBHMBREZER  REEZBESAHEBA
BREFSEELIE NMEBHBEEER
BAERRAG 22 REZEQAR
EXRAHEZENEBRE -

MEEFEREA(BREATEZRARA
BREEEZHFEEAGRAEREEZEGER
ESERETHE BEEFREAKR
HFEERETHG  BREZESRER
ZEEAGIERH L EZRER - Mt
ESERBEEFSRE AN - RERE
BMAMEE - MIFREHREAEE -

W

.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Nomination Process (Continued)

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.
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EERERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(@)  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee's field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board:

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and
(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and

the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Selection Criteria (Continued)

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive
Directors and an Executive Director. The composition and attendance record of

the Nomination Committee are as follows:
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Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESERE percentage
Attendants HEE SR HE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AELEEE(ZEEEFE) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEIARE S A 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 2/2 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FTH IR & 202 100%

Role and Function HERBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board’s composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.
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EERERHRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2023 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also reviewed and considered that the following
key features or mechanisms under the Company's governance structure are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board:

i In assessing the suitability of Director candidates, the Nomination
Committee will review their profiles, including their qualification and time
commitment, having regard to the Board's composition, the Directors’ skill
matrix, the list of selection criteria approved by the Board, the director

nomination policy and the board diversity policy.

. Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their roles as

members of the Board and Board Committee(s) as appropriate.

®  The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director's time
commitment to the Company's business. Directors’ attendance records in
the year are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

. Independent non-executive Directors' independence is assessed upon
appointment, annually, and at any other time where the circumstances

warrant reconsideration.

® The Company provides guidance to Directors on avoiding conflicts of
interest and on the circumstances under which appropriate action(s) shall

be taken by a Director in conflict.

. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors are entitled to
seek advice from the Group's company secretary or the in-house legal
team as well as from independent professional advisers at the Company's

expense.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
July 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has reviewed the current composition and is committed to achieve
gender diversity on the Board by maintaining an appropriate level of female
members on the Board and to provide the Company with a good balance and
diversity of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of its business.
The Board plans to appoint at least one female Director by 31st December
2024. The Board will continue to review its composition from time to time

taking into consideration specific needs for the Group's business.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.
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EERERHRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.
Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the

Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEE®

Composition EED2

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised R RIRIBEE PR 2 FE PR E 2 AR A A
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit MNEZZES([BERZET ) 2BRESHE
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The ERZZE-—NF—A—HBEH -BZES
Audit Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors. The EHIBEIIINTEFTAN - ERZEE

composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: AR EERLENT
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEERRH percentage
Attendants HEE S BIRE HE R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — fIEEAE(ZEESEE) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung Bagekas 3/3 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 3/3 100%
Role and Function AEREE
The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and EREZESTIEBRERBRYBRS - A

A

credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures MEBERANMBEZEREF 2EBERAE
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of - L REARRBINE R BN R 5 R 4T
the Company. Ba% -

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the BERZEgNBRGENEESSHAMAE
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by BhaKEREZE@AMEEESIDRET
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given RAASHWRRET - LBEREZEEN
below are the main duties of the Audit Committee: FERBRWINNT

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of (a) ZERINEZBENHEREREEEME
its resignation or dismissal; BB e AR R RO RS 8

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the (b) PAEAZ T {ERA 1A Al 5 8151 BE A% L AD
nature and scope of the audit; SmEAME R
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EERERHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2023, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  theinterim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 28th September 2023 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and an Executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
mﬁ‘g%;ﬂﬁ percentage
Attendants oy SR HE=R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AREEEE(ZESFE) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEmEE L A& 22 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENRFEE 212 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung AR ST A& 22 100%

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2023 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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EERERHRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of employees (including the Directors and Senior
Management) of the Group are generally structured by reference to market
terms and individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group also
provides various other benefits to designated staff, including discretionary bonus,
social insurance or medical insurance, share option scheme, continuing education
and training programmes. The Group also launched key performance indicators
assessment scheme and annual bonus scheme to boost individual performance

and operational efficiency.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

FMEES (@)

£33} &
AEBRE(AEEERSESRAL)Y
HH—RISBIISERXREALETE
T EHELR - AEBERABES
TRHESEEMERN - SEBBREL - 3
SRBABERR - BRETD - BEE
15 RIBHIERIZ o 7k 2 B JRHETT BB 48 R
R B R R RTHES
AAFRE RS EUER -

BB A=

RER - AR B2 EEDZE SR E G TR
EBREZERZMIEFRERSE - MAR
ARZERBENRENZEHE R
T

HK$’000
FER
Audit services for the Group RAEERME  EZRE 2,155
Non-audit services including: FEZRGEELE

— review of interim results —EHFEEE 276
— taxation services for the Group —RAREBRMH 7 HIBRS 328

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEERFEERNHZETER
annual results announcement 24
Total mE 2,783
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate
Governance Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors.
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:
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Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE /S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — AIEE%4E(ZEESEL/E) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBESL & 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENTE 212 100%
Role and Function AGRBE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and TEELZETARERIBINAEED

reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2023 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.
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EERERHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated

with its businesses and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

. Identification: identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that
could affect the achievement of objectives;

. Analysis and Assessment: analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

. Risk Response and Monitoring: consider the risk exposures, ensure
effective communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on an

ongoing basis.
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EERERHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT AZPEEIE R AR E 1 (4)
(Continued)
Internal Control System AIEBEZERA

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the Group RRBEHIEANEBEIERA - AR fEARE
to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, EEREEF MM RBEN - MRS
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and %’I@;&iﬁ;?i%ﬁ&&iﬁﬁﬁ@ B1F - %iE

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows: ZERUAT RS D4 ¢
. Control environment: a set of standards, processes and structures that e EMIRF: RASKERERANIER
provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group; REERN —ERE  BF RAEE

. Risk assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and o AT —EBEEoTERZ

analysing risks to achieve the Group's objectives, forming a basis for B RERBE  NEREKEEEA
determining how risks should be managed; 12 RETNAERRMRETEER

. Control activities: actions established by policies and procedures to ensure C EETE MEREBFHIEITEN

that management's directives to mitigate risks for the achievement of BREEBMMBEKB EMAR
objectives are carried out; [E R T EH < e B]AT

. Information and communication: internal and external communications . ERRAH: AAEERMHETH
to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out the daily BEEMEASLIINLBARE
controls; and ¥ R

. Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each . EE:Q%V: CREEAREZERGSANX
component of the internal control system is present and functioning. Bo 2B FERETMETHRE

K BERT A o

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems, FEonaa [ e B IR K A B EEAE R AT 0 AR A
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and EEBIINAEREBEGESTERERE
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal BUREEERATAER 2 ASEZY
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation 88 - W B IR A FBEEIE R ET RBIT 2 Bk
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for RIRMAERS  c ERAAIEERKGHE
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit KRAEFEREZE EERABRBEIRR
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation ITERITE -

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and AEENEZGERITEENRRE R

internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The RAREEZRGHERMN  YRRER -
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to o FUAREEMNRRERERAPEEZE R o
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, F= E”qfiﬁﬁilf/ﬁﬁéﬂi LEMEIBERZ 'I';r =

and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material Rk - WREEMmIEBERZAIHEEAKN "

misstatement or loss. ES aﬁ sk 182k o ;;F::.:ﬂ:

“
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WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company has formulated the Whistle
Blowing Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. It
was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, with the
authority and responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Details
of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's

corporate website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

External parties may raise concerns about the relevant matter against the

Company by using below channel:

Email: auditcommittee@nhh.com.hk

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of business
conduct and has zero tolerance for corruption and related malpractice. The
Company has formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy and it was approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. Details of the Anti-Corruption
Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's corporate website

https://www.nhh.com.hk.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experiences, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board
and various Board committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2023, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND HERNBERRRER
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and AEEFRBZEERGE  BERYERR
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. MEBEEATFHORENMZEMABRAE
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the RMRE « ARE B AR B IRE(TARER L)
“Shareholders™) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders FREEERARBHEZ - REAIBBIA
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company TREFBARAN AR WE QAW

secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”): EMESTSELER :
by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory . BHEZARRAUREEHRADAN
Center, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong; RABREIOHR GBI ERL6HES
ENERFR
2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663; 2. BEEEBFENE+852 2693 1663 :
3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or 3. {HEEEEYEE +852 2694 0877 : K
4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk. 4, BIHE info@nhh.com.hk °
Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. FERESMAHAREHNEREEXTEE

Announcements are posted on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com. AR - WA A B AU https://www.nhh.
hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains comhk ARG R E - ZPBULGERENE
additional information on the Group's business activities. B WEEARKEEREE 2 EINER -

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure RARSBERREFRRAE - AR
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and EaEMBEEN  REBERRTHASERN
goals. HREFE R ©

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by RRBEDEZEETRRNBHCER AR
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to RAEIMBRRARGRE) NHII KRR
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The FRROIEF - BRETHZIEF - XAA]
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about EERBFRBRAREFIARAGSE LT
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents RBIRARENERXHOMEE - EFGH
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer FERRBAFRGHRERREE - RRE
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock EAREHERETARBIAELEE - I
Exchange and are posted on the Company's website shortly after the meetings. SRANA AR R AL o
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY B B BUR
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by the ARARBEBR(TREBEKDEESTSR
Board and became effective on st January 2019, MR —_ZE—-NEF-—A—BRER -

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate BREBRREEBEREETERAQAETRR
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the FERKNBREEREENIEF EFSR
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's BAFRENRBBER - BRI &= H
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable BEEARNER 2 FEETE -

dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of EREEBRRNREDESFELERELRR

the Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends, which will AR B 2 BE R EHR ZIRE - MAR
depend upon, among other things: AR AR B 2 88 J1 iR F T3 B IBTE
HpaE
® the Group's financial results; J REENMBER
*  the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements; e AEEMELRE RHEZRE
EFX
*  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level; s AEEMAGEEELRREBKT
®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group; o AREENRERMBIAIES IR
® the Group's shareholders’ interests; e AKEEHREEL

e the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and e AEERKEARAKRHEKEE MK

strategies; oo EHA R R
*  the general market conditions; s —RMIBIBER
®  the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm; e RERKEENNERITENER

®  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the e HAKERERAT M ER

Group's lenders; A% 2R B PR i
®  statutory and regulatory restrictions; o EEREERH
®  past dividend records; and o BEIRBLHE K
e any other factors the Board may deem relevant. s EFGARBRARBE I EMEAM
% °
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that

dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness
from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and

approved by the Board.
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pwc B Sk 16

Independent Auditor’s Report BYZEMKRE

To the Shareholders of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited ﬁ%ﬁ@'_ﬁmﬁﬂﬂﬁi
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZFMAE I BERZIA])
OPINION =

What we have audited EFEFTHAE

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the REITAERAR(ATERBI E 7)) RE
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"), which are set out on pages 61 to W% REATHBEIEEREDIHENE

190, comprise: E 90 BEMGFEMBMmE EREIE
®  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2023; e RIZIZEZ=FA=THMHKFEE
ERERX:
®  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; e BEZHILFEMGEERER
® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then U HEZBIEFENGEAMHRER
ended;
®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; s BEZRALFENGAEREDRX
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and s HBEZBLFEMNGZEHEERE
=R
. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant 4 REVBHRERNT EFEEEE
accounting policies and other explanatory information. BB EMBEEER -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is those matters that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is provision for inventories.
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EEETEE @)

Key Audit Matter HRETSEE

Provision for inventories FREEE

Refer to Notes 2.11, 4(e) and 2| of the consolidated financial statements BRMGE LM T 211 - 4(e) K21

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net value, being estimated BETEAAN A E#RFEREP 2BE

selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2023, the Group's %@JEE Tﬁgﬁﬁ/?1ﬁﬁ$ETﬁ1Eu+ﬁﬁ%Fﬁ

balance of net inventories was HK$266,938,000. FIBRATHEIHMETE - R=
FRA=+RH EXEENEER ﬁ’rﬁ 7%

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management
judgement, which is determined with reference to the price per latest sales
transaction, ageing analysis and the estimated net realisable value for obsolete

and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on the provision
for inventories because this assessment is subject to estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the assessment relates to the complexity of the
methods and subjectivity of significant assumption used, significant judgements
involved in selecting data and the carrying values of these inventories are

financially significant to the Group.

266,938,000 TT, ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

EEEEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ENTEERARENEE

Provision for inventories (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we

performed the following procedures:

FERE(E)

IR EEEBHFERENMEESEN

BRMITHEFEHE

We obtained an understanding on the management's internal control and
assessment process of estimating the provision allowance of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, net realisable values including how management
gathered source of inventory data and adopted the assumption
for provision allowance. We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and

level of other inherent risk factors;

We evaluated the Group's inventory provision policy with reference to

the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

We assessed the reasonableness of methodology and assumptions
applied to estimate inventories provision by inquiring management
and other relevant employees and comparing against historical sales,
reviewing utilisation pattern and historical key inventory ratios (e.g.

inventory turnover days) and data;

We tested inventories movements to validate the accuracy of the
inventories ageing report, which was the key report used by management

to determine the provision for slow-moving inventories;

In relation to management's assessment of inventories' net realisable
values, we compared the selling prices used in the assessment to actual

selling prices subsequent to year end; and

We performed a recalculation of the inventory provision based on the
net realisabale value and ageing profile of the inventories as at 30th June
2023.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgement applied by management

were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 37 ¥ SR #R 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement
rEl=EkR

For the year ended 30th June 2023

B2 T =F N NA=1HIFFE

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B E FERT TAET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPEH e 5 1,177,827 1,738,775
Cost of sales SHE B 8 (1,030,123) (1,435,641)
Gross profit il 147,704 303,134
Other income H AUk A 6,736 6,797
Other gains/(losses), net Hlzs,/(E518) — %88 7 5117 (249)
Distribution costs Vol = [N (80,576) (88,273)
Provision for loss allowance on BRI GREERE
trade receivables 3.1(d) (883) (535)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (112,335) (124,375)
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8R), s A (34,237) 96,499
Finance income BT W s 686 898
Finance costs BB E R (17,309) (8,470)
Finance costs, net MBER - F8 9 (16,623) (7.572)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrFi AT (E51E) (50,860) 88,927
Income tax expense MIESZ 10 79) (22,483)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEF(ER), 5= F (50,939) 66,444
Attributable to: AT AT RE -
Equity holders of the Company NG ES (52,007) 56,598
Non-controlling interests FEE TS 1,068 9,846
(50,939) 66,444
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit NEERRIRREN
attributable to equity (E518),/% 7
holders of the Company during the year ZBR(EE)BF
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AR AET)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 (14.09) 15.33

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FaabilER

For the year ended 30th June 2023
BE_E-_=FNA=FHIFE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year KE(EE), &5 (50,939) 66,444
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hih2mE(E8E) W
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently RETSHETHEE
to income statement: Wk sIBH ¢
Fair value (loss)/gain of financial asset at fair value RARBEAEM
though other comprehensive income PHBENUEEEL
("FVOCI”) DREE(EE), s (599) 717
Currency translation differences M H Z R (1,583) —
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently BEwENSES
to income statement: Wk sIBH ¢
Currency translation differences M H Z R (52,299) 44
Currency translation differences released BE—HWB QAR
upon liquidation of a subsidiary FRIRIE H =58 (1,789) —
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AEHMEE(EE), W (56,270) 761
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year REZEME(EB), B8 (107,209) 67,205
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to: 2HE(EE) WaBEEER
— Equity holders of the Company —RNAEIRE (106,526) 57,148
— Non-controlling interests — JEfE IR A (683) 10,057
(107,209) 67,205

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in ARG & 0T U 55 8 B RE B BT 5 — OF B3

conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
BARERRER T
As at 30th June 2023
REZFZ=FA=1H

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FERT FAET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE L&A I5 99,714 11,503
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 25,333 30,826
Investment properties WEME 17 155,426 155,160
Intangible assets mEAE 18 = —
Financial asset at fair value through other BRAREBEFTAEM
comprehensive income PHEHWENIBEE 19 2,344 2,943
Deferred income tax assets REBIEEE 31 9,102 9,090
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BB RREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BERRERZS 3,024 4,118
294,943 313,640
Current assets RBEE
Inventories EE 21 266,938 413,468
Trade and bills receivables 2 F R R EWERE 22 217,246 233,142
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hfth fEUYRR - BT
Migs 23 24,868 48,824
Income tax recoverable EIRLEE TR 555 861
Restricted bank deposits R HI M RITFER 25 36,082 38,797
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEHE 25 150,637 178,926
696,326 914,018
Total assets naE 991,269 1,227,658
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the AR RREGRAE K B
Company’s equity holders
Share capital A% AN 28 36,920 36,920
Share premium AR (B 28 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hith 29 6,762 61,281
Retained earnings R 4 A 29 405,201 464,592
511,349 625,259
Non-controlling interests FRIEFI S 23,1155 33,787
Total equity QB 536,504 659,046
r‘-t ANNUAL REPORT FEH% 22/23
.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HRoEEREAER
As at 30th June 2023

R—F==F N NA=1H

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
= T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities RERIBEE 31 6,275 6,261
Lease liabilities HEasE 16 4,154 8,201
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R N B 23 884
10,452 15,346
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables B P RN RN ENRE 26 56,769 87,336
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMEMNRK - e lET2
LIERE R 27 36,996 51,506
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 5,774 5013
Bank borrowings wITIEE 30 338,922 392,827
Derivative financial instruments TESMI A 24 135 296
Income tax payable e IR 5717 16,288
444313 553,266
Total liabilities HWEE 454,765 568,612
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 991,269 1,227,658

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LR a B E B AR B EEMT BT —OF 3
accompanying notes.

i
o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 190 were approved by the FOEIVENMBHRREHETEN -

Board of Directors on 28th September 2023 and were signed on its behalf TT=FRAAZTNB#E  URKRES
B%E
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
= B it B ST B
Director Director
2 EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FaESgPR

For the year ended 30th June 2023

BE—FE_=—FNHA=+HIFE

Bxchange
fluctuation Non-
reserve Retained controling
i3] eamings interests Total

HERE Rah e 8
HkS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR THT TR TAT

At Ist oy 2021 AZT--E+A-B 390 6146 3119 9640 147 5273 28300 31707 620,144
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit fo the year REER - - - - - - 5659 9846 6444
Other comprehensive income Afb2EdE
Currency translation differences EXEE - - - - - H# - 10 4
Fair value gai of financia asset at VOOl BAABE ARMRENE

WEBEE DA ERNE - - = = 516 = S 01 m
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - 516 El} 56,598 10057 67,205
Transactions with owners HfiREzR5
202072021 fialdividends pad $-%°%/-% %%

RBRE = = = = = = (14768) = (14768)
202112022 interim dividend paid =%/ "%7%F

hERE = = = = = = (5539) = (5539)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests SRR HER X RS = = = = = = = (1997) 7997)
Total transactions with owners RFEEI RS = = = = = = (20306) (7997) (28303)
At 0th june 2022 i Sty o = 390 6146 619 9640 1988 57 46459 3787 639046
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeESgPR

For the year ended 30th June 2023

BE—TE_—FXNA=+HIFE

Autributable to the Company's equity holders

ARRREEB

Other reserves

SR

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income reserve
BOA Exchange
EETA fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation Afp2E reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve reserve  WEHEE Edl earnings interests Total
R ESA EhxGf EftaR EEGE Raak REEH  FEHER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn T T T T TEn T

At st July 202 RZZZZFtA-A 36920 62466 (3,119 9,640 1,988 5,1 46459 13787 659,046
Comprehensive income 2EhE
(Loss)/proi for the year KE(BR) /& - = = = = = (52.007) 1,068 (50.9%9)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income EH2E(FE)/hE
Currency translation differences EiZE - - - - - (52.299) - (1,583) (53,882)
Fair value loss of financil asset t VOCI -~ BAABERFARMZENE
WEBEE DAERER - - = = (831) = = (168) (599)
Currency translaton diferences released  EE—TIMBAFR
upon liguidation of a subsidiary BRERER - - - - - (1,789) - - (1,789)
Total comprehensive loss 3 1 - - - - @31) (54,088) (52,007) (683) (107,209)
Transactions with owners LAY
202112022 frl dividend paid $HZR2-/ZR2FR
KERs = = = = = = (7384 = (7384)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests ISR HER X RS = = = = = = = (194) (1949)
Total transactions with owners RfiREzR 508 - - - - - - (7384) (7949 (15,333)
At 30th June 203 WZZZ=47A=TA 36,920 62,466 (3,119 9,640 1,557 (131¢) 405,201 25,155 536,504
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in bl R A W o B R R B BE PR B R — OF B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o

;-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GAEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2023

B2 T =F N NA=1HIFFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China income tax paid

Interest received

2023 2022
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FEx FAET
REEBZREN
REEBES (FR)

Z2H® 32(a) 93,977 (22,785)
EHMEBEBNEH (5,698) (830)
BB B i pTIS R (4,787) (17,692)
AR 27 445

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Prepayments for property,

plant and equipment

REXBEE, (ER)Z

LER® SR (40862)
REEBZREN
BEMX  BEK&RE (6,966) (14,129)
HEME - BB K&RE
Frig K 32(b) 190 =

M - BE REREENR
(2,805) (3.899)

Net cash used in investing activities

REXBRERZFH® (9,581) (18,028)
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LAY
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2023
BE—F_=F N NA=1HIFE

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(= FERT TET
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBZRER
Proceeds from bank loans FrigIR1TE K 960,559 583,778
Repayment of bank loans BERITEXK (893,464) (575,841)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans SREBBRERCR L),/ #ig (120,379) 65,182
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XA TIEESIER 2 RE (7,949) (7,997)
Dividends paid IARE (7,384) (20,306)
Interest paid ERHE (17,185) (8,470)
Repayment of principal elements of BREHEAGERSHS
lease liabilities (5,268) (5,038)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEBHER) EEZ
financing activities FHEE (91,070) 31,308
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRESEHIRD (17,132) (27,582)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUIzRERRSEE
of the year 25 178,926 206,579
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEE R BB (11,157) 71
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZIRERIARESEH 25 150,637 178,926

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction LR & IR & TR 2 3R B SRR M B 5T — OF B2

==

with the accompanying notes. A= e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 1|, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
28th September 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issues by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at

fair value.
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—REH
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BAR(MBEIAEEDETEREE

BRE - - F6H EMRT
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ARARRRAREEMZ —HAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

FESHHERE®)

2.1 HREEE)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

mENTEB BV B HRE LN
MBHmAFEERETHRES
AEE - ENTEEEEER
AARENETHRBIEFRT
EEHE - p RS E R HE K
2 EEMMENEE - SOF Y

REMBHRRBEARKMME
Boghs - EME4PRE -

RAAFTER - L12EA 19
BEUFZEZZE

(a)  Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards (a)

and interpretation

rEEERBEZZT-C
F+A—-—BENFRY
fE & X B LA T 3 ZE A
M AE R B EET

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation for the first time

for the annual perioding beginning on Ist July 2022:

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37
(Amendment)

B BHEERE 35 -
BFREEEAE 165K

BB G ERE 37 RUBFTA)

Narrow-scope amendment

EREERENER]

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)
ERECEIEEE AT

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
HRZEBI G ZAHEDE

Annual Improvements Project

FEUGERTE

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle
—E-N\FE_Z_ZFENFEIE

BRAN £ SRR 51 B 3 £ Bl
R Ea b
THRERANSHELE
TRxeg BEHTE
B E A RRERBEESL
EXFE-

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning st July 2022 and have not been early

adopted:

HKFRS 17
BAMBREERS 175

HKFRS 17 (Amendment)
BAMBRSEENE 1TR(BITLR)

HKAS | (Amendment) and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BAGREAR | RUETA) REAMBREER

EBREELR

HKAS I (Amendment)
BAGHEAE R (BAIEK)

HKAS 8 (Amendment)
BAG R REFA)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)
BAGHERNE 2% (BATF)

2. HEEE(E)
(b) UTHBEIEEIIHER
BEEZE-_F-—F+H
— HE BB B F R EIKL
#9272 Rl K #12E Bl 6 1%
il AEE I AEIEFIR

Insurance Contracts'

rBREL!

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information'
BARPEEMBREENSE TR EBAVHRSEEA
FIF-HLBRER

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

HHBEORE'

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
BEBENBEARDIIRE?

Definition of Account Estimates'

Eitfiztes

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction'

E-QBELCAERABEBETHA'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEREBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2. HREEE(E)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards (b) K TFRE AR

have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning st July 2022 and have not been early
adopted: (Continued)

BEEZE-_F-—F+H
— HE BB B F R EIKL
#2728 Bl % 12 Rl 19 15
il AEE I AEIEFIR
(&)

Hong Kong - Interpretation 5 (2020) (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term

Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?

BEREE 5 (2020) (BFTK) MBRER 2T - ERAH S EREREEGHZEHER 2 P!
HKFRS 16 (Amendment) Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback?
BAMBREENSE 65 (BILX) ErEE HERR?
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Supplier Finance Arrangements?
BAGEAETRR HERERE 2
BEMBREENE7R(BEX)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?
BEMBREERE 0K REEGER REERHEBENARRE AR AELER IR’
F28H(BFIEK)
o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January o BT -_=F—HA—
2023 B 2R F IR AR
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January @ BE-E-_WF—-—A—
2024 B 2R F IR AR
® To be determined @ HAREE
The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the AL BB AR FH
new standards and amendments to standards on its results AR R R0 2 5T 8
REE 2 ¥E KB

of operations and financial position. None of the above new
standards and amendments to standards is expected to have a

significant effect on the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control

is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive

income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.

2

SRR

FESHTHERE®)

2.2

HERE

(@)

K& 2 7]
MEAREASEHH
BEEERGIENME T
(BREEBIEER)-
EAEERAA2EZE
B8 M 7 42 7 & o] 3 10
R FHAEE RN E
mo WARNEBEY
ZETENBATENS
(O] ¥ B - 7K 52 [ B4
ZIfg-MEBAREE
tlEEEAKEZA
Eatt AR - BEBARF
RS ER L BRE
EABEARR

EEANAREZRS
FTEEZEHRRRER
W T LAY - BRIER
SMBEHEEZEEER
B &g TRXREH
BRI TAHE - WE
RAIZ B BREDIRE

EEHNE - ARERE
AEBERBZBRRTE

— o

KB 2 IE R B
BLomEmDBINEGSR
Wk afflER
BaZ2HANMNEERRE
RBUIIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred:

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business;

. equity interests issued by the Group;

® fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

®  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHREBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 #HEHKREE)
(a)  Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) HELF(#E)
The excess of the: fid
. consideration transferred, . FrEEER(E -
®  amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired . WEERE 20
entity, and FERER TR
&
®  acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest o RIS AT B EE
in the acquired entity BRZKRA
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is BERKBEBRZAAE
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair B & 5 PR AT &l
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the EEFEAANEBEZE
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain BHUAREBAR - WK E
purchase. TRERMEEXR

AHEREEFERANE
B AZE8EREaT
BERRRAEERE -

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is WMEMREREBECEE
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to FEIE - Bl R R 2 FE AN K
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount BEMREERAERB
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the B ZIRME - FrERA Z b
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an REDERBZBEEBER
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. A= BAR & AT b B K
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a HERGEHEBIERE
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are BISRIBERBROF X -
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair KAREDBERERK
value recognised in profit or loss. cRBE - P ERTR
BRECERRENFTE

HOREE MARE
TEH@UE'JEQTEEEEPEEE&\ °

r“ ANNUAL REPORT F[E#eE 22/23 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERSMEm)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 #EHRE(#E)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests (b) HERERE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest

results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of

AEBEBTERREE
HlZEERERERS
GIFRASEEDRHEA
AR Z - A #EER

the controlling and no-controlling interests to reflect their Y AHEREE
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between TREZZEmEED
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and BB ARBRKERS
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate N IR/ v =B

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.

2.3 Segment information

24

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

€

(®)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE M HRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHBERBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 IMERE(E)
(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) XZRiEeR(E)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings HEEMESRAES
are presented in the consolidated income statement within B A e E N Y
“finance income” or “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange BRERERERAN
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income (87 % W as 1 3B #5 &
statement within “other gains/(losses), net”. AR5 - FTE HME
REMEEESE K
ERAOEMK R
(B18) —FR PR -
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a BRAREBEFEIL AN
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at BitEZEEEHIEE
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation FTRETAFEERZ
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are EEME - ZAAEE
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, IR CEREZHERR
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities NREEERZZ D -
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are plan - EE¥HEEE R
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss BE WEBERRUAR
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as nEEFEEHEZE
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive AB = ?—rﬁZﬁéﬁnE’\
income are recognised in other comprehensive income. FaBERRTHEIAR
/LT,@\EHSZ@E}ZJEHEZ*
M MIFEEERB
BEWIMSBREAR
EBEFAEMEZEKE
MBS B ERRER) T
EEZREREZEAM
EHKER
(c)  Group companies (c) ZEEETLA
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none AEEETHEER(R
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) HHEKARBRLE
that have a functional currency different from the presentation BEANEB )N ES
currency are translated into the presentation currency as WMAERRINEEY  H
follows: XBERV B R ARN
THARABRBIIEEE
(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are () BEEBEBEXRMY
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance MEERABERZ
sheet; EEBREXNAH
W ERBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHREBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 IMERE(E)
(c)  Group companies (Continued) (c) FEETLAIE)

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are (i) BaALEEMT
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average B A R E H®TF
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative HERBE - RIE
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in It 7 55 B R 2 A
which case income and expenses are translated at the EEMBER MR
rate on the dates of the transactions); and SHHEREEXRR

REEE EuE
AT WARZH

5 B HHE
EREH R

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in (iy FrEHELEENE
consolidated other comprehensive income. HREBREMEE

Was iR o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition WEEBIEBEBELELZE
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the BERAAEENABR
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange RIEBINERBZEER
differences arising are recognised in equity. BfE - WK TE X

H-EENELEZRE
R AR

(d) Disposal of forejgn operation and partial disposal (d) FEINEE R E MBS
BE
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal HREIME 2 H R B (B]
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or RESEERIIEE
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that RE RS NHE
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint BV RRRHERHRI
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign B R B 2 R R 12
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence B AP RRAHESR
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the BOMEENEENAR
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that I P RERRY
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company BEFIMEENH LR
are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss. REOFEHIRE) - BLRIAK
BREFARDENEB
RRRMBENMRAIE

REBRHYEDEERAR

18es o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
(Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 40 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements Shorter of the
unexpired lease

term or 5 years

- Machinery and equipment 8 years
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Tools and moulds 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset'’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on valuations carried
out by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated profit or loss as valuation gain or loss in “other gains/

(losses), net".

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets - Technical know-how

2.8

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

(@)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecogntion

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the

Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

29 HBEEEHE)
(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FE(#&E)

86

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses), net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in consolidated income statement as “other gains/
(losses), net” when the Group's right to receive payments is

established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

(@)

Measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in “other gains/
(losses), net” in consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or

losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified

as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being

hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to

be settled within twelve months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other gains/(losses), net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHERESME®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Financial liabilities 214 BEE
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are rEBBT2 MG EERES
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements TERBEATHESERER
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity RUBEELRERTIA -
instrument.
Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially BBaBEREEIENRRE
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised BNER)NFRARREE
cost, using the effective interest method. FE - HREREBRMNERE

R AT E -

2.15 Share capital 2.15 RZ&K
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax, TRRSFERER BITHR
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown S HE IR i 2 FE R B AR HIBR B 1R
in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. B R EE N R R o
2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs 216 BRI REEHKE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction ERVLRAALBELHRE
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised ENRZRGRAER - EFRHIE
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) RE B AYIER  FT5 (30
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or BRRZXHHRA)BELOEENE
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest AEZEFNAERNEERER
method. HEAELEEBRAER

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has BRIEREEAEIGHENSE
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least BENEERCEAERABERD
I2 months after the end of the reporting period. @R BRAIERDERR

BAIME -
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the BEEBBENWE  BEE4AE
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are CEREAEBUAKL—BE
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready REERENEETETE RS
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, ENEE)NEERAS  MA
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended ZEEENKAN  BEEEE
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss ABEBEHEETRGE LB
in the period in which they are incurred. ERIE - TAREMEBEERRE
EAHIARIEE PR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred

tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group meausres its tax balances wither based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which

method provides a better predication of the resolution of the

uncertainty.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property

that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable

that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

92

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.17 BRI REEF1SH (E)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued) (b) FELFEH(E)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for fith 75 &= [ B #0 1% %'Jﬁé@
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax ERERORR
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company EZHEA TR Ef "
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary RER - AT~ 5tE
differences and it is probable that the differences will not INETE 2 IR A BRI (B R
reverse in the foreseeable future. TR EZHzEREZHE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHREBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 IEEHEF
(a)  Pension obligations (a) RUIKEHE

The Group participates in several defined contribution AEES2EETAEH
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme RENKREEHE RE
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions HORETEE RN E B AR
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a H AN BEBEEER
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has DR ILANE EBRIK
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further REBETEMERHERZE
contributions once the contributions have been paid. KeEstdE e AEEEL

% AEE -

REME -
The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund REBERSE B2 HER G
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MAEestaEl((BES
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes sTEll) - RIERE S
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s g2 AEERE#EEEN
relevant income with a maximum of HK$1,500 per month, BiREREB & BIRER
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident BetERTNEBEA
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and B2 htEsa sl
immediately vested in the employees. ERBE A1500% T

(BUERE) » i FHRK
E2HARRETESE -

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution HPERNBHES K
schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions SEMTMMETREHK
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state- BARESFTEMHR XE
sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the EEAFBEE AFOL
relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no = - A BB E RSN
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond ZREEHTENRSE
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are Bl RERKR Lt
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to HRAN - WA E A
retired employees. BAREBANET - ZFH

T &M /0 % 7 E BRI
BRAREEBAEMEA
BRABTHRASEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE M HRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHRERBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.18 IESHEF (&)

(a)  Pension obligations (Continued) (a) RUKEHAEE)
Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits HARERMNKHERRE
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by BRMNFAX - BTAH
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave T 5T B A AT BE R 5T
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid 2 H R B PTAE ) K
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a w4 o BRI RIRR
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. RE RN AR D RK

NRMERREE -

(b) Employee leave entitlements (b) EERAEZ
Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised EEFRZEMNNEES
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the JEZ BB MER - (Hat 8
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services ZREBREBSRHR
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. BmaERZERE THE
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are H-BEZREBED G
not recognised until the time of leave. BRETE®R BEXRE

BIEANKRBRBILE -
(c)  Share-based compensation (c) KRG BEEZ HMNE
7
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based AEBLEUREXN
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair B B% 19 R B 5T 21 (188 Ak
value of the employee services received in exchange for A LD AR HE
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The RER ] TEREE R
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to BAARBEDER AR
the fair value of the options granted, including any market T -RIXBEHIZEZM
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service REBREZAAEBE
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including BET ERBEMEM
the impact of any non-vesting conditions. MHEEEE - BT

B E A AR M I 5
KB ZAIITHRGMN T
BRI TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2023 and 2022, there is no

share option outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when

they are settled.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SRR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Leases 220 #HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by

the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and

instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.

As a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less

any lease incentives receivable;

®  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual

value guarantees;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lease as s starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,

which does not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

® any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of twelve
months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small

items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

2

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

2.21

222

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the

new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer, which
is when the customer obtains control of a good, has the ability
to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that good. If the control of the goods and services is
transferred over a period of time, the Group recognises revenue by
reference to the extent of progress toward completion in fulfilling its

performance obligations during the entire contract period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.23

For the amounts of revenue recognised for goods transferred
and services provided, the Group recognises any unconditional
rights to consideration separately as a receivable and the rest as a
contract asset, and recognises provision for loss allowance of the
receivable and the contract asset based on expected credit loss;
if the consideration received or receivable exceeds the obligation
performed by the Group, a contract liability is recognised. The
Group presents a net contract asset or a net contract liability under

each contract.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with below policies:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity. Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the likelihood and provide for sales return for the goods
sold at the time of sale. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised

using the original effective interest rate.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.

2.25 (Loss)/earnings per share
(1) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. The (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other

than ordinary shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
determination of basic (loss)/earnings per share to take into

account:

® the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKERERER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3 HBERBEZE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market AEEKETHEESBUG
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest R\ B 5 E B (8 1 SNE &
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's B BRenERAALEBEBNEX
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of Rl RERERR)  EERR
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on ErnBEeRR -  AEEER
the Group's financial performance. [\ B 3 51 U St % 26 DATEDRI A9

RS - U H AR EMS
REMBETNEERER

1’ -
Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. ERETHERAEE MK
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures BB o AEE HE TRRAT
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of EeRMIAHARAESRRH
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The ERBRMAE - ARE—R
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative TEBRIRYINESR J’\/(%q
purposes. B HHME R o AKEIL &

AiTE® mﬂlﬂ{’ﬂx&%/éiﬂ
(a)  Foreign exchange risk (@) SMERR

AEBEXBEIRURNE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
BERFBEAH - KEBH
RGBT ARBR
ELEE-MBEREE
RHAEEREERE
BUAFERDEEE 2
EHEtE - RBISME R B2
REEL  AEETE
m ¥Rt kAR &5
MR -

China with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi (“RMB™) and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the subsidiaries’ functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UREREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 BBEEREE(E)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) SMEmESE (&)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Management has a policy to require group companies to

manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.

EEEER LHKR
ﬁ’é E1/N Wmfﬁiﬁiﬁ

[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales and ﬁgiéf BERNIMNER
purchases made by the relevant group companies in currencies R  BEEITRBREAH
SERRENRIERRIL

other than their own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular

reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures and

EERHEELREEMS
2R NEBINE

has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to manage Hﬂ 15T OM B L B I 62
foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2023, the Group had BHENAEE §|\I;J—l‘
certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts to 7_01_5; ’ i;zgg
purchase USD (2022: purchase USD), details of which have — N e

been disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables, ;_FE ;'? ¥R f@fﬂ\ ﬁ%(;:;i

restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bills payables and borrowings were also denominated in
foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in
Notes 22, 25, 26 and 30. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD,
management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2023, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax
loss for the year would have been HK$ 1,440,000 lower/higher
(2022: post-tax profit HK$ 1,273,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign
currency-denominated non-derivative financial assets and

liabilities.
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SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREBEE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HMBEEEHEE)
(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk b) HzxmBRLAEEF
BT
The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially HARAEEITE|EKRG
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group BEE ALKRERITHE
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash REEBRFR K&
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates MBMARKEERERE
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at A ETZWIGH R E
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk BHRE  AEEMY
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair MM EEeERFE
value interest rate risk. REER - RFEAE

AAEMEREARER
HReRERR MK
B £ A & 5t 2080 18 5K A
EASEEEHREE
MR o

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing AEEGITKRBERNE
fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with 2B BB LORTE FE A
reference to the trend of changes in interest rates. EFFBHNEZHE

BT -

=]

As at 30th June 2023, if the interest rates had been 50 basis RZEBE-_=ZF A=+
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, B fF X2 m/
post-tax loss (2022: post-tax profit) for the year would have WA I+ E B PR
been HK$670,000 (2022: HK$589,000) higher/lower (2022: EHMBRHERTE
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest AIREFEREZEEBRZ
income on cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest T__F:HrEMN)
expense on borrowings. BeEm m(ZE

ZIZF R M)
670,000 T(Z & = =
% 1 589,000 T ) ° &
BB E ZERIRITF KA
BUWAZEGm,/ @ 8e
RITEREENFEX
2z 3, R A HYFEE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 BBEEREE(E)

(c)  Price risk (c) BiEmkE
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to REBEAZHRBER
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The SIHMERRE BB
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order mERER AEE®
to determine its pricing strategies. PERRMEEREZED

B EHATERE -

(d)  Credit risk (d) 1EEM@ERE

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash AEBVTESEEFH

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such

as trade receivables and other counterparties. The carrying

EERR - HNESE
ERBBERMRITESR
XRBEIRITER B

amounts of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet 5 M WK & e W = TJ%
represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in ‘e Hitt Ul R KR
relation to its financial assets. HEEHBEENR ﬁ
BEARNEBMBEEM
AEHRREERR -
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to AEBEEMBEVKEE
the expected credit loss model: ZIEHEEEEED

= Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.
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SRR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables shared

credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the

same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMRRKREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HEEEEZEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (@) 1EEmEfE(E)
() Trade receivables (Continued) () B ZERK(E)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2023 EEELE B
and 30th June 2022 was determined as follows for trade E_=ZFXNAZ=ZF
receivables: BT FX
A=+HE®HE SR
WHREBEBRBEET
m

Gross Expected credit

carrying loss rate Loss
amount EHEE allowance
IREAE BiE R EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET

As at 30th June 2023 R-B==

~A=+H
Current RAE 141,967 0.0% - 0.6% 45
Within 30 days 30 A 21,877 0.0% - 1.3% 47
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 10,245 0.0% - 5.6% 66
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 1,584 0.0% - 18.4% 20
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 4218 0.0% - 28.6% 330
Over 180 days @A 180 H 4,181 100.0% 4,181
184,072 4,689
Gross  Expected credit

carrying loss rate Loss
amount FEHEE allowance
FREE EtE = EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

As at 30th June 2022 R=-TB==

AA=tH

Current RE 165,285 0.0% - 0.4% 91
Within 30 days 30 A 28,120 0.0% - 1.2% 27
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 9,378 0.0% - 3.5% 40
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 2,372 0.0% - 14.2% 53
 E— 91 to 180 days 91-180 H 4,468 0.0% -21.9% 521
i ¥ Over 180 days @A 180 H 4,573 100.0% 4573
214,196 5,305
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREBEE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBEREAEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) 1EEE (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () EBZERK(E)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at RZT_=Fk=
30th June 2023 and 2022 reconcile to the opening loss EZFXA=F
allowances are as follows: A& E 5 W F
REBRBEBRSFY
BERBEENHERN
T~

Loss allowance for
trade receivables
EZRUAEERE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FAT

Opening loss allowance as at Ist july ~ REH—HH

FHEEBE (5,305) (4,770)

Provision for loss allowance B S W ER
on trade receivables B (883) (535)
Currency translation differences MEH ZERE 438 —
Receivable written off TUEE FE W 1,061 —

Closing loss allowance as at 30th jJune RS A=+HH

FREBERE (4,689) (5.305)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented Z 2 REWTREES
as net impairment losses within operating (loss)/profit. BRI RKES
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 18), % A N E R
are credited against the same line item. BEEEFE Hi&
Y [ 55 B 2 8 B9
RERE—EE A

N
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 BBEEREE(E)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) EEREE(E)

110

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

(e)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

(i) EEEH ARG E Y

Hb & E
Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and BEEKNATERN
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management HuB & ERE
considered that these have a low credit risk and did RehkREeEFERE -

not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2023, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$329,262,000 (2022: HK$382,814,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.

Ligquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2023, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$626,402,000
(2022: HK$570,548,000) of which HK$329,262,000 (2022:
HK$382,814,000) was being utilised by the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. As at 30th June 2023, total
banking borrowing with repayment on demand clauses was
HK$ 143,449,000 (2022: HK$75,007,000).
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R SRR MR
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEERREE@®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBEREAEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () mBEZmEEE)
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —ZWERN WELFR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERT THERT
At 30th June 2023 RZEZ=FxA=+H
Trade and bills payables B SB[ KEMNFE 56,769 = = 56,769
Other payables and HipE s kERE R
accruals 24,535 — — 24,535
Lease liabilities HEAaE 6,077 2,604 1,655 10,336
Bank borrowings RITEE 340,475 — — 340,475
Total B 427,856 2,604 1,655 432,115
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —EWFA WELFA o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET
At 30th June 2022 NZE-Z&FxA=1H
Trade and bills payables B HEN R RENEE 87,336 — — 87,336
Other payables and HiEN R RTERE R
accruals 24,508 — — 24,508
Lease liabilities HEAE 5475 4,745 3817 14,037
Bank borrowings RITEE 395,166 — = 395,166
Total #HE 512,485 4,745 3817 521,047
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FE M IERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMRRKREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBEREAEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) WHEBEZEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASEENERE
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EELENTTETRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from B HREBNIHAE
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Bl BEBEHEEABER
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Az &R 2 EE & F e
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at HEETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENSHEARKUR
WaRBEER LRIE
REEBEXRBERAD

ERIBE -

Within Between | and Between 2
| year 2 years and 5 years Total
—-£R -EMFA WEIFR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TERT TERT

At 30th June 2023

Currency forward

contract

— Outflow — AN 46,488 30,992 — 77,480

— Inflow A (46,500) (31,000) — (77,500)
Total FEEt] (12) (8) — (20)
At 30th June 2022 RZZE-_—&XA=+H

Currency forward BERHIEH

contract

— Outflow — SN 92,988 85,239 — 178,227

— Inflow —RA (93,000) (85,250) = (178,250)
Total Fket] (12) (I = (23)

I'—r
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank

borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

SRR

3 BH¥KEREERE®)

32 EBEXEBEE
AEBHBLEERE 212
RSB EELE AR
RIS MR AL MIERSSE
MR EEF - R R R EN
B LORIEE £ RA

AEBEEEEARRE  TRE
RERBENESFLRAE - B
THRBRABRELERE A%
BRI aE & B T T RR AR
B8 BITHRIESHN
RITERK -

AEENABELXEREE
AR o b e R AR PRAR S H AR A
RERGHE - BBFEREE
ERERERASFH - HE
ARzl (MGEaEEAR
KRG MBS FE ©

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th MRZBZ=FR_T__FRX
June 2023 and 2022: A=+8H AEBZzBELX
wmr
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 30) @EE (FzE30) 338,922 392,827
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) & : BR& RIRESZEE (K17 25) (150,637) (178,926)
Net debt B %8 188,285 213901
Total equity HarEm 536,504 659,046
Total capital 1B R A 724,789 872,947
Gearing ratio BERBELE 26% 25%
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratio increased from 25% to 26% as a result of decrease

in cash and cash equivalents during the year ended 30th June 2023.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group's current financial
liabilities including current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

RETHERDF

3

R EE #)

3.2

T

BXEBEE(E)
EXABRLERHAOZ-TH
FAZBESZZ+ARERAK
FENRS LRSS BRDM
ElE

RAAEEG
REZBEMBEHRSELFET
% EBemIATEEAR
RO AAREBEFEFTRTIA
REEFTERBIKRE :

s HRAEZESEEBEETR
MENREBOREFHE)
(FEI1[2)

s KBTEIEMBRENRE
S ZEEMBENA
BENHEMGHA AR
BEEREIPI(ER ) K E
Z(AREER)(F28)

s EBEEMABGAYIFKERA
BEmSEENE AR
FABRBA)(EIE)

AEERBEMEE CKREE
BREASLRSETH HEHE
WK EREE  BE REAM
FEMK - AR A E 7 8 B 75
RERRIHEE E5EN
RREMNRE - HMENRE
BRER  ARNEERAZH
mEEXEERS -
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SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ALEEGE(E)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is EERMSEENERIAY
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is ARBERBEEEENTSR
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available BYIER o & (B AT B A0 E A7
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or NEFRGH XH5H K
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly 2 EZRNATLT - EEBRBEDL
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted EEREES MZERENR
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the FEAFXGEEHETHER
current bid price. These instruments are included in level |. MERTISERHE - ZHI5H

BRERE - AEBERENMG
BEEMTHLHRELAERER
B HWFEEMTAIAFIE -

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active WIRERTIZEENSRT
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined BB ZG0TEERT
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise BN BERAKERE
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as EE - HERNMEENAAEH
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs EMBEE(WNE) B8 DK
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is BEBNEEMET - 5tE—
included in level 2. TRIANQABEMRFHOM

BEXRGARAEREHE - 8
ZEBRIAINAE2E -

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data, WA —IESN % A E K A IER
the instrument is included in level 3. BAIEBRTISEE - AlZer

THEIAEIE -

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level FIHFLIEAALBEEBRY
2 fair value hierarchy classifications. HoRUEMBEENERNE
}% °
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 30th June 2023, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are
measured at fair value are set out in Note 7. As at 30th June 2023,
the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
performed the valuation of the financial asset at FVOCI by the use
of discounted cash flow model based on the market conditions
existed at balance sheet date and business forecast provided
by management. Specific valuation technique used to value the
derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present value. The
key unobservable data includes the interbank forward exchange rate

and the volatility of forward exchange rate.

RETHERDF

3

R EE #)

kL)

RABEGE ()
RZEZ=FA=+H" ' XK
SEZZARBEFAREMSE
HR=NBEERITES
MIEEDBEFEIEeRT
B BENARBEFENR
BYEDRMEE 17 REE - B
—E-=FXA=+RH"' 8K\
EERMZEENERMIARN
AABEMNAHBERNETE -
AEBXEZRBEFERSER
ERNMBBEARERERM
ZEBEMEHRER - AR
RERESITEAELRAAE
Bt ARMEEREHNTFEE
EZEE - BUGETESR
T B o9 FF e (B #ir 8 45 3 A
BEBBRANNEHEXRES
EMAEEETEZRAE -
RGN A B R AR B HE ERTT A
EHIE R KR AE X 2K E
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AW ERRM T
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRRKBEER®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ALEEGE(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRETEBE_ZT_=FH
the year ended 30th June 2023. =tHLEFEEIBEERMIA
Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
RAREE financial
st AHA instruments
ZHEKED PTE
HBEE S@MIA
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THERT
Opening balance HR &5 R 2,943 (296)
Net settlements FEE — (435)
Losses recognised in other EEMEEEERRANERE
comprehensive loss (599) —
Gains recognised in profit and loss B R R WS = 596
Closing balance HRER A5 6R 2,344 (135)
Total gains for the year included FREBBENABNFR
in profit or loss for liabilities #BWE - BREEBRRD
held at the end of the year, [E Az, (B1B) —F58 R
under “other gain/(losses), net” — 596
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B RRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREE@®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AR EEGE (E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for UTNERBE-_T=-__F/\H
the year ended 30th June 2022. =TBELEFERNEIBESRmT

AmEB% -

Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
BRARER financial
T AE AL instruments
2 HEKED g
MBEE SRMIA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Opening balance EEIREEAS 2,226 (23)
Net settlements REEE — (292)
Gains recognised in other EHE M2 E WS
comprehensive income HERREE 717 -
Gains recognised in profit and loss 118 s R A W 25 — 19
Closing balance HR sk 2,943 (296)
Total gains for the year included FRPBBENABNEE
in profit or loss for liabilities Bls - BREEBERERN
held at the end of the year, [ HAnEE— F8E 1+
under “other losses, net” — 19
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 BEHBEENEE
As at 30th June 2023 and 2022, there were no financial assets or N-TBE-=FEF T - —FX
financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable A=+H UE\ENMKEE
master netting or similar agreements. S BEEEE - ATRITEE

ERBEMBE L RAORR o
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SRR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EBERGEETTRAMS

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are REBSKBEBEEETBREDN

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other KEREMEZRERRAHARZ

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be EHNEETER - TE ARG KA

reasonable under the circumstances. ET{EH RTA4 -

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the REBHRRELAEFRBEZ G

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant HEEEREREEELHERBEER

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and R AT RBERERRO MG

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. ST RBRH - ATBBAR TEMBE

EHEERBEZREEFEANH
B’ o

(a) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, () YW¥ BMERZEHAEH
plant and equipment FH - BERTE
The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, AEBEEBEBETCHYE K
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property, BREHEOGFAIERSEE -
plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that HRENEBITEER  HHF
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from use of BT RERNAEEEEREA
these assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of ZEEENMERR R EF
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar REEFHmMSEE - EM
nature and functions. Management will adjust the depreciation AR MU E S IhEE R Y
charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously X BERREBHBTIERA
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or FRFERABELE - WA EAF
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. HA BRI RIE IR E KA

FEER IHEHERLE
B BT L S B 3K 3F SR RS A
BRIRIE

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and BB B F B AT s Bk 5 AT A
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values. FHER - BRMMEINA L
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and HEFERETR - AEBE T EHR
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future MITEFHRARSRE  WMEA
periods. BELIREE - At EHEH

FE?Z%%E)EH °
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4

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require

the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the

consolidated income statement.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note |7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on assumption about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past collection history of each
customer, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key

assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(d).

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

=

y

4

SRR
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

®

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have

been changed.
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SRR

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZF&E8z2WER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 ERE #
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAET
Revenue from contracts with customers BERPaH /A
Sales of goods HESEm 1,177,827 1,738,775
The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time. AEERE -—KEMFEEREEE
1= O
SmeA -
Liabilities related to contract with customers BREFEHZER
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEECHERUATERERPEOZ
customers: BE:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT TR
Contract liabilities, included in other EIAEMERNGKKTERE R
payables and accruals ZEaHaE 9,005 9,510
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the THRETABREHEAREES LD
current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEBRONKESE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Revenue recognised that was included in FAEYENEEE R
the contract liabilities balance at 2 B R
the beginning of the year 9,510 8,355
There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation B —F A FRRTEG B
that has an original expected duration of one year or more. MARTEREHA RTHKBLHOEF ©
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”) and manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic

products (“Engineering plastics”).

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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SRR

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFEHZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) PEER #)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z_="FXXA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2023 is as follows: RUEGEELERKEZ 2R
EDIMERMT ¢
Segment
k1
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
25 EaE IRER Hit A&®E
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHERT FERT FET T T
Turnover BT
— Gross revenue — D ERIHE 799,702 293,821 138,544 — 1,232,067
— Inter-segment revenue — 5 EEIHE (52,454) (1,774) (12) —  (54,240)
Revenue from external SNER R B Uz
customers 747,248 292,047 138,532 — 1,177,827
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8) a R (57,033) 15,640 8,427 (1,271)  (34,237)
Finance income B s 57 587 42 = 686
Finance costs % E R (13,728) (1,227) (1,934) (420)  (17,309)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K& A (E538), 3 FI (70,704) 15,000 6,535 (1,691) (50,860)
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFEW8z2WER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 ERE R )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z_="FXXA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2023 is as follows: (Continued) A EREERKEZAZI W

EDBERWT : (&)

Segment
7 &

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
8% EGE IREZEN Htt F&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TERT FTERT TR FRET

Other information: Hin &R} -
Additions to non-current assets FERENE EIE N

(other than financial (RemITAR

instruments and deferred FEFHIBBEEIN)

tax assets) 92 8,176 3,893 38 12,199
Depreciation of property, mE - BER

plant and equipment RIGIE 615 9,020 5,730 475 15,840
Depreciation of right-of- CREEENE

use assets 312 4,677 982 206 6,177
Provision for/(reversal of) FERBEEERE

impairment of inventories, (#[E) — %8

net 9,221 (305) (1,436) — 7,480
(Reversal of)/provision for B oW RERE

loss allowance on (Bm), #BE

trade receivables (158) 921 120 — 883
Fair value gains on derivative PTHEEmMIA

financial instruments AaEERE (596) — — — (596)
Fair value losses/(gains) KEMEAAEE

on investment properties &8, () 924 (1,793) = (1,570) (2,439)
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SRR

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZFE&SZ2WHER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 ERE R )

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZBEZ=FNA=+AHREHGE

segments as at 30th June 2023 is as follows: ERERKE 22T MEDBE
BHnTE

Segment

2 &8

Engineering

Trading Colorants EN[ Others Group
g5 EGQE IR2BR Ht &A&%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER FHERT FER FEx FER

Segment assets DEPEE 394,799 320,484 135,539 140,447 991,269
Segment liabilities pan= =Nt (63,610)  (32,453)  (16,000) (3,780)  (115,843)
Segment Borrowings DEEE (293,684)  (23,748)  (21,490) —  (338,922)

(357,294)  (56,201)  (37,490)  (3,780) (454,765)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable BE_ZT-__FA=1THLEE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2022 is as follows: RELEELEARE 22
ENEBERNT :
Segment
D
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group

25  B6H IREH =it  AKHE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TET TET  TAT  TET TER

Turnover B

— Gross revenue —DEHBIHE 1,163,005 356841 285440 — 1,805,286

— Inter-segment revenue — 5 EBEISHE (64,651) (1,669) (191) —  (66511)
Revenue from external SNER R P U 2

customers 1,098,354 355,172 285,249 — 1,738,775
Operating profit/(loss) KRR, (E18) 29,888 20,073 47,300 (762) 96,499
Finance income B 75 s 158 653 87 o 898
Finance costs %% F (6,738) (620) (1,048) (64) (8,470)
Profit/(loss) before income tax  BRFi A& ], (E518) 23,308 20,106 46,339 (826) 88,927
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS SRR B X

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2022 is as follows: (Continued)

BEFEHz2WHER

DEE R (#)

HE-_ZET—-—

FRNA=1TBHLEE

RECEREKERREZNZIIR
EDHWERMT : (&)

Segment
5%
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH IRZH Ht REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET THET THET THET TR
Other information: HE&EFR
Additions to non-current assets FERENE EIE N
(other than financial (RemITAR
instruments and deferred FEFHIBBEEIN)
tax assets) 870 19,679 6,895 I51 27,595
Depreciation of property, mE - BEK
plant and equipment RGBT E 794 10,307 7,088 376 18,565
Depreciation of right-of- CREEERE
use assets 343 4,228 1,073 206 5,850
Provision for/(reversal of) FEREEERE
impairment of inventories, (#m) — 558
net 2,852 (80) (868) — 1,904
Provision for/(reversal of) B S RKFER
loss allowance on B, (#E)
trade receivables 153 510 (128) — 535
Fair value gains on derivative PTEeBRITA
financial instruments AaEERE (19) — - - (19)
Fair value losses/(gains) KEMEAAEE
on investment properties B8 (W) 952 (89) — (1,010) (147)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2022 is as follows:

SRR

EEEHZ2RWHER
DEE R (&)
R-ZE-_—_FNA=+BHREHELE
RS REEZARIEREDHE
BT

Segment

7 Hp

Trading  Colorants

Engineering

plastics Others Group

25 E0H IRBH Hitb REHE

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TET FHET FAT FAT FAT

Segment assets DEBEE 508,823 37895l 197245 142,639 1,227,658
Segment liabilities pan= =Nt (86,677)  (50,460) (36,422) (2,226)  (175,785)
Segment Borrowings DEBEE (334,081) (9.973)  (30,159)  (18,614) (392,827)

(420,758)  (60.433)

(66,581)  (20,840) (568,612)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2023 is
approximately HK$363,318,000 (2022: HK$785,599,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland
China) is approximately HK$814,509,000 (2022: HK$953,176,000).

At 30th June 2023, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$173,281,000 (2022: HK$175,233,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is
approximately HK$ 110,216,000 (2022: HK$126,374,000).

BERBUNEEAEM BHE_Z
—ZEXNAZ+TRLEEEREES
2 N EBE P U & 4 A 363,318,000
B oT(Z E = = 4 :785599,000
BIL) MAREBEMHE(EEA
REAM) 2T ERPRELD R
814,509,000 T(= T = = F:
953,176,000 7T ) °

R-ZE-_=ZFA=+H K&
TEARBEEBEBEEEINMINEEZ
JE R EE E 4 A 173,281,000 7T
(ZZT = — % 175233000 T) *
i REMmtE(EZE LT AH)
ZHEEFERBEELR10216,000
BT (Z T = — £ 1 126,374,000
TT) °
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132

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HflA
2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Rental income AN 6,719 6,741
Other income Hitn g A 17 56
6,736 6,797
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AEAHSWANKREYME A
amounted to approximately HK$ 1,098,000 (2022: HK$749,000). B A HE41,098008L( ==
Z = 1 749,000 L) °
7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 Htpzs(EE) - 38
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Fair value gains on investment KEMEN R ABERT
properties (Note 17) (P 17) 2,439 147
Fair value gains/(losses) on forward foreign BIEEERB ZINERBAL
exchange contracts held for trading ARBERE(EE)
— Realised -BEHR 460 292
— Unrealised —XREHR 136 (273)
Government grant (Note (i)) R # Bh (B 3E (6)) 1,144 -
Net exchange losses INEEE (4,124) (415)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) EE—HME AT
(BRFEE (Gii)) 5,062 =
5117 (249)

Notes:

() During the year ended 30th June 2023, pursuant

to Mainland China local

government policies, the Group received government grant amounted to

RMB1,052,000, equivalent to approximately HK$1,144,000, from Mainland
China local government authorities to support the operations in certain
Mainland China regions with no special conditions attached.

(i) In May 2023, the Pudong New Area People’ s Court of Shanghai has declared
bankruptcy of a subsidiary of the Company. The Group recognised a gain on
the liquidation of a subsidiary including a dissolution gain of HK$3,273,000

and release of currency translation difference of HK$1,789,000.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE

GEX

(i)

RBE-ZE-_=F<A=+81t
FE - REPEADE WRTR
R AEBEBERETHREAMM R
IS TR B MR M BT R
U ER & £ 1,052,000 A RE(FEH
1,144,000 7 7T ) 37 4 BT 75 £ f] f6R 4
ZEEBRFMBATIERLS o

R-ZE-_=FHA LETHERF
BEARZRESEAAGH—MTF
NEWE - NEBERER—H
M AR B IR - B 1 R AR
3,273,000 8 T RIEE —FHHE A A
B A PR U8 52258 1,789,000 78 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A 5
BOMBRAME T
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BMEETZHAX
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Cost of inventories sold excluding PEFERA(TEEEEKRAR)

manufacturing costs 941,608 |,342,641
Auditor's remuneration ZERT 2

— Audit services —ZERH 2,155 2,094

— Non-audit services — IR BART 628 639
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERRENE

equipment (Note 15) (PfFE 15) 15,840 18,565
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) EREEERE (M 16) 6,177 5,850
Provision for impairment of GFEREEERE

inventories, net — 5 7,480 1,904
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME  BMELEREZ

equipment (Wz=) /BB 7) 539
Employee benefit expenses, including BERAMZH(BEEZMSE)

Directors’ emoluments (Note (i) and Note 13)  (MJ&E (i) B 5E 13) 136,155 150,713
Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings BFreeEEle 7,031 6,830
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERIRERY 4,962 5,349
Transportation and packaging expenses ERkBERX 22,972 29,183
Travelling and office expenses ERERPFAERE 7,072 6,410
Utility expenses KERZ 14,960 15,908
Other expenses H b & A 56,001 61,664
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEKA ~ DHEKAR

and administrative expenses TR 4R % 1,223,034 1,648,289
Representing: K& :

Cost of sales HE A 1,030,123 1,435,641

Distribution costs 7 SR 80,576 88,273

Administrative expenses THE 112,335 24,375

1,223,034 1,648,289
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e B I R R RE
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 8 BMEEDZHX@

Note: Pzt -

() During the year ended 30th June 2023, the Hong Kong Special Administrative 0] RBE-_ZT-_=F-A=+HL
Region Government has launched the “Employment Support Scheme” (ESS) FE - BBFNTHRERMNHED
providing wage subsidies to eligible subsidiaries of the Group. Government [MREEEIFHERHIEFMBE TR
grants amounted to HK$1,933,000 (2022: HK$48,000) are deducted in the EEEEERMBAR - BUTH
employee benefit expenses. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other Bh 21,933,000 (=T =24 :
contingencies attached to the grants. 48,000 7T ) AR HRLE B 8 Fl 2

HH - 0 A 7 B P A5 B AR AR 16
e M A EIR -
9  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 BBRHEMEH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Finance income: B AU 25 -
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITTFHMEBA 686 898
Finance costs: MBER :
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) —HEABZ MBI 16) (457) (345)
— Interest on bank borrowings —IRITBEZHE (16,728) (8,125)
— Net exchange losses on financing activities —RMERBINEBRFHE (124) —
(17,309) (8,470)
Finance costs, net MBER—FH (16,623) (7,572)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 BLEH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2022: BEENGHR BB FE R ERH
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the HHERERHS 2 T ABR(ZE
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China have ZTZF BN TARME)ERE
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the e FEAMBEDRELREE
rate of 25% (2022: 25%) except that certain subsidiaries are subject to RAPBEAKYREEZWEB R
preferential tax rates ranging from 5% to 5% (2022: 5% to 15%) and RAIZAFEMARRTAMNER
other preferential tax treatments. A subsidiary in Dongguan which was AZZTRH(ZEZZF:BHLZ
certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and is entitled to a TTRIZBEHE  BREZXNTFA
concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years from 2021 AZAZEBHZ TH(ZE=ZZ

to 2024. This subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax BOZAZBEDZ TH)NEEHRE
treatment when the preferential tax period expires. R L B 2R B R ) 3 L B B A B A

Gho REE—FIREZEZHEBR
RAERBRASNBRAEYAE =
T R T _NFEE=FFH
DZTHhAZEERE - LB R A
AREENGH TAEBRBILIE
BEWMBLHE -

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement FERRERIZBEIEA

represents:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR

Current income tax: REFHRIA :
Hong Kong profits tax EBNEH 63 4,359
Mainland China corporate income tax F B A3 1 ZE PSR 3,307 17,324
Over-provision in prior years FEEREEE (3,139) @)
231 21,676
Deferred income tax (Note 31) BIERIA (3 (152) 807
79 22,483
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AR B IS SRR B X

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's (loss)/profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax

rate as follows:

BIEZHE)

A A R B AT (B8 ), %l
BERBERAEBANEHIBE
M B BRHEEENT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

T TR

(Loss)/profit before income tax BB AT (E8),m (50,860) 88,927
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) &M T 165% (T ==

16.5%) 5T 8 2 Fi18 (8,392) 14,673

Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China PR AR E 2% (1,577) 4,028

Income not subject to tax BARD WA (2,006) (136)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAIH0BE 2 T H 1,156 [,346

Tax losses not recognised RERZHIBEE 14,419 2,886

Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses A EAIARERRIABR - (977)

Withholding tax in Mainland China B A b TR AR A = 1,644

Over-provision in prior years FEERREE (3,139) 7)

Tax reduction (Note) B EE (M) (382) (974)

79 22,483

Note: The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the
first HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiaries to 8.25%.
Profits above that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of
16.5%. In addition, certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject
a lower profit tax rate at 5% on taxable income below RMBI,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,087,000 (2022: HK$1,190,000),
and 0% on taxable income on taxable income over RMB 1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,087,000 (2022: HK$1,190,000)) but
below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,261,000 (2022:
HK$3,571,000)), and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%.

136 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« ZE4THERAF

Mizk: ZTEREBEMAHT —FKRN
& KM B 2 5 & 2,000,000
78 or FE T B AR 80 R 15 R X
155 Bl R E=825% 0 HiZIBiB
2,000,0007% 7T & & 5 % A
Bl 5 Bl 48 B 1R 16.5% B F - It
AN - BB 5> R B A B B A R FE
R U Z LA T 8 3 1,000,000 A
R # (% {8 491,087,000/ 7t )
B B0 1R 5% B = Bk - ERR
B Uz 25 DA = R 1,000,000 A R #
(% & 491,087,000/ t(= &
~ T 11,190,000 L)) B
it8 33,000,000 A R # (& E %
3,261,000 T(Z T = = F -
3,571,0007% 7T )) #9 #B 19 12 10%
R MR AE G5 BlE
25% Y & 7€ B = UK -
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SRR

DIVIDENDS 1 RE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT

Interim, paid, of Nil T\?Eﬁ‘\)ﬁq:‘ Hﬂﬁﬁ 2
(2022: HK1.5 cent) per ordinary share (ZZ2-—F : GIREBIR1.5EM) — 5,538

Final, proposed, of Nil TR )—IEXHHHX SN
(2022: HK2.0 cent) per ordinary share (ZZEZ=F : GRTAR2.0BL) — 7,384
— 12,922

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

On 24th February 2022, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HK1.5
cents per share, totalling HK$5,538,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2021.

On 29th September 2022, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share, totalling HK$7,384,000 for the year ended 30th June
2022, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2023, and has been
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th
June 2023.

On 27th February 2023, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 3 1st December 2022.

On 28th September 2023, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2023.

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

RZZE-_—_F-_A=-+WMH " &
EEMREBEE-_S=—F+=A
=t+—BUEXNEAREFHRES
B% 1.5 74l - ££5,538,000 7T ©

RZE-_—_FhAA-THhA EF
gu%ﬁ'fi@@i_v__i/\ﬂ_‘f'
AILEFERZERARESR20E
il - #\7384000;%73 &tlﬁﬂxﬁ
BEREBE-_ZT-_=FA=1+H1L
FERASN YEREBEE-_ZT_=
FRAZTHLEFEZREEFF
bV

RZBZ=F_A-++tH&ETZ
BEFgzl EFFATHEEC
T F+=ZA=+—HIXHEA
EIRIEMFEHARE ©

RZZBZ=ZFNAA=ZFTNBETZ
EEgR L EEIRTHEEC
To=FRNAZTHLEFESTIRE
A AREARR S, o
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

12 SR(ER)BF

E-N

FREA(ER) BNIERER
REWE(BRE), TS8R AFRAE %

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. TEBRRZ MEFHESHE
-:EI 2022
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of REIRREG (BE),
the Company (HK$'000) w A (FAET) (52,007) 56,598
Weighted average number of ordinary FNEBITERRZ
shares in issue InFEF 8L 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER(ER) &F
(HK cents per share) (AL (14.09) 1533
Diluted #5
Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2023 R-ZB_=FR_ZT__F-A
and 2022 equal basic (loss)/earnings per share as there was no dilutive =+H A2 7jﬁﬁé\,ﬁ\?§ﬁ7§‘}%ﬁ7}2
potential ordinary share as at the years ended 30th June 2023 and 2022. T@k At REEZZT==F
MZEZZFRXA=THILMESF

B SREE(BER) BMESN
SREKR(ER) AF -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERANZEH(EE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEME)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THTT
Wages, salaries and other allowances B DS E b= 131,892 146,298
Pension costs RIKRE A 4,263 4415
136,155 150,713
There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds REBEZTE_=FA=THLHF

utilised during the year ended 30th June 2023 (2022: Nil) to reduce future
contributions. As at 30th June 2023, contribution of mandatory provident
funds totalling HK$30,000 (2022: HK$163,000) were receivable.

RETHERDF

i

£ 0B AT 0% U os B IR
BEHR(ZE_ZF:8) RN
TE-_=FXA=1tH ®wHEUELTE
SRS #3000 T(ZE = =
F 1 163,000 L) BRAEE S -
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SRR

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EE2AENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS EEBEABZHME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the HE_ZT-_=FA=+HL
year ended 30th June 2023 is set out below: FEBUESEZMEOT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERANAIHMELH)
RUBEMXAGRLNEHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ BERALF

and benefits contribution ~ HEMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension ES S

£ bonuses Housing scheme  HtESHH
Fees Rfb2E BfTEE allowance [ £2) [BGE] Total
Name of Director Esftg ik RENAE fied EERE BAS2HX Ehwme g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR R R R BT TR

Executive Directors yirEs

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ sFIt R4 (£7) 2040 2310 = = 8 = 4368
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong i 2,040 2310 - - 18 - 4,368
Mr. NG Chi Ming REAEE = 2049 = = 8 = 2,067
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FAELE = 1,469 = = 18 = 1,487
Mr. HUI Man Wai FXBRRE - 7% = = 18 = 814
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAELE = 1,159 = = 8 = 1177
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

() EFEMz(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(TERALAZANEAH)
REEBMZAERNHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of

the company or

14 BEZRNBZNERRSE
EBABZHE @)

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers ~ REBAAR

and benefits contribution ~ FHMBEAR

inkind  Discretionary t0 pension HEHRM

100 bonuses Housing scheme  EftESHH
Fees Bt RfTEE allowance ExH [BUE] Total
Name of Director £33 s REMAE WA FERR Bfez#tf  EROMHe A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin TR TEn TER Tén T

Independent Non-Executive BUkHTER
Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul Pl 250 - - - - - 20
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EBmEEE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. YU Chi Kiwong REREE 200 = = = = = 200
Tota % 4730 10,093 - - 108 - 14931

;-
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SRR

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZABENERRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEABZME @)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EFEMz(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the HE_ZT-__A=+THL
year ended 30th June 2022 is set out below: FEBUESEZMEOT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{FAEZ(TERAARAENELR)
RERBHALRLHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Fmployers ~ HEEARH

and benefits contribution ~ SEMBA

inkind  Discretionary to pension HEBRE

oM bonuses Housing scheme  EMEZRE
Fees Ll ETME allowance EEY fsefisk Total
Name of Director ESY we RENHE oy FERE  BASER Gl 6a &8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000

THL TEL TER TER TER THRL TER

Executive Directors BiTEE

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ FFIEEBSE4(£E) 2040 2209 980 = 18 S 5267
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TEREE 2040 209 980 = 18 = 5267
Mr. NG Chi Ming REAKE = 1,985 465 = 18 = 2468
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen TAEEE = 1353 m = 18 = 1743
Mr. HUI Man Wi TXREE = 78 183 = 18 = 982
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE = 1,137 544 = 18 = 1,699
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FE I IERRMIEE
|4 DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EBEZHNBFZNEZRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EBAECZEHE ®)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

() EEZEME(E)

Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
EXY
RIREZH5
HK$'000
L

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable
in respect

of Director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
its subsidiary
undertaking
HEBARE
FHEMEAA
IES
EHEZRE
[BES
Gl
HK$'000
TR

Total
&
HK$'000
TAL

BUFnES

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul

Mr. CHING Yu Lung

Mr. YU Chi Kwong

msLE 250 = - _ _
BinEsrE 200 = - _ _

250
200
200

Total &g 4730 9714 354 = 108

18076
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2022: Nil).
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2022: Nil).

SRR

14 EBE2NENEERSE

£

EBABZHE @)

() EFEMz(E)
RAREEATEEENERS
ZHe(ZTE=——F &) - R»
AKEERARNEBBMES N FE
MEEMEHSRAEZESH
NzfE(ZE_—_F &) -

(b) EERERKEF
RAFEERNL L E REERME
BAREI(ZT=_=F : &) -

(c) EFBHRILEF
RAFEAWERIEFRIESR
EmmEFREEMBR(Z
TF ) o

(d HEREBRBEMEAE=S
R E
RAEFE R E iR E AR
BmmE = FiRENEERE
FAEF(ZTE=ZF : &) -

(e) HEE ZZEEFZFH
ZANEBRZEZHHEE
BIERHWEN  EBEXME
X8 HEF
RAFERNLTERAES - X7
SESRAMNEAEBRZE
EMHETRIERER  EE
RMEMRH(ZEZZF -
;) o
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AR B IS SRR B X

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

W

®

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2022: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2022: three) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

14 BEEZRBZNERZREE
EBABCEHE #)

)

®

EBERS  ZHAAAY
AN
% TR A B R M 34
HEZR B AFEERRE
KR A2 A B ATAE (S
RASEZEBMALTZE
FEERHMBEERRAEA
B2 EERS  RRRAH
(ZB==fF: f5) -

BERBFMA L

REER ERUSZSHFMA
T =ZU(ZE—F: =
N)AEE HMEERN EX

EHz2oMHPIFE SR T&xE
FMATR EEE2HMFS
N

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind  Fr Bl + B2 R EWH = 4,947 4,529
Discretionary bonus IFTEAL 225 2,406
Pension costs RIRE KA I8 18
5,190 6,953
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HEHFMETIESHBER :

Number of individuals

N |
2023 2022
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HMeE(ET)

HK$ 1,500,000 - HK$2,000,000

1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000% 7T
2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000 %8 7T

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /87T - 3,500,000 % 7T
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 7T - 4,000,000 % 7T

RETHERDF




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND

14 ESEZNENEERSE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

®

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals

(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office

in connection with the management of the affair of the Company

and its subsidiaries during the year (2022: same).

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 Y% - BERRE

EBABZME @)

(e EHEEREBHMAL(E)
AEBYER LA T(BRE
BERDHMES ) XN E
BREMARIEBKERMNZ

BEE(ZZE-—F:HR)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings ~ improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
RELTH BE equipment RER vehicles moulds Total
kigF WERE  BERRE  BAERE AE IAREAR &%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TAL TEL TARL TARL TARL FAT FAT
At 30th June 2021 R=B=-£XA=1H
Cost B 112,245 71334 207,073 19950 8531 3,380 90513
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (51547) (81,183) (168861) (17937) (7835) (204) (309,387)
Net book amount REFE 60698 10,151 38212 2013 696 135 113,126
Year ended 30th June 2022 BE-2-CF
AAZTRLEE
Opening net book amount HOREE 60698 10,151 38212 2013 696 1356 113,126
Addition #m = 4953 10234 1242 679 73 17481
Disposals meE = = (532) @ = = (539)
Depreciation ik (259) (5209) (9,054) (1049) (353) (281) (18565)
Closing net book amount HREREE 56,099 9875 38860 219 1022 1448 11,503
At 30th June 2022 R=BZZ#XB=1H
Cost KA 112,245 76287 214991 17,084 8,504 3748 43,859
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (54,146) (66412) (176,131) (14,885) (748)) (2,300) (321,35)
Net book amount REHE 58099 9875 38,860 2,199 1022 1,448 111,503

'?Jf
/ \

L
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RS B A SRR MY aE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15 Y% BERRE®R)

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures

land and Leasehold Machinery and office

buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HEL HE equipment %ER vehicles moulds Total
kEg? NEEE  BERRE  BOZRE KE  IARHEE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 30th June 2023 BE-BC-CE
ARZTRLEE
Opening net book amount BUREEE 58,099 9,875 38,860 2,199 1,022 1,448 111,503
Addition Em — 2791 6,643 200 1,132 203 10,979
Disposals & = = ) = (160) = (183)
Depreciation il (2464) (4,107) (7,790) (757) (436) (286) (15,840)
Currency translation differences ERER (3,167) (492) (2919) (74) (44) (49) (6,745)
Closing net book amount HREEE 52,468 8,067 4771 1,568 1,514 1,326 99,714
At 30th June 2023 RZBZZ£XA=+H

Cost BA 105,992 76,487 205,664 16,521 8908 3,794 417,366
Accumulated depreciation Zitine (53,524) (68420) (170,893) (14953) (7,394) (2468) (317,652)
Net book amount KEFE 52,468 8,067 4771 1,568 1,514 1,326 99,714

Depreciation expense of HK$ 13,402,000 (2022: HK$15,297,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$ 174,000 (2022: HK$112,000) in distribution
costs and HK$2,264,000 (2022: HK$3,156,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2023, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$30,843,000 (2022: HK$33,369,000).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE

PrE & 13,402,000 t(—Z T ==
115,297,000/ 70 ) B B ¥E £ ¥
&K A 1740008 T(ZF = =
F 12,0008 L) EBREEDHEK
AN K 2,2640008 L(Z T ==

3,156,000/ 7)) B BREAEITHEH °

RZE-_—_FA=+H  x£8
BR T ¥ B 4258 49 30,843,000 £ (=
T — T 4 333690008 T ) 2 W
¥ BERIBEEBTRIT A
AEERBRITREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

16 LEASES l6 HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. A FREATEEREBAZEE
ZER -
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () RESEEEEHEZERZ
ME

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

Right of use assets FHAEEE

Leasehold land and land use rights THE T &+ b 16,141 17,879

Properties LS 9,192 12,947

25,333 30,826
As at 30th June 2023, the net book amount of leasehold land and RZE-_=ZFA=+H HEL
land use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities Kot {50 PR #E BRTEFEL4Y 3,894,000 78
amounted to approximately HK$3,894,000 (202 1: HK$4,222,000). TL(ZE == 1 4222000 7L) B

WTRT - REAEEEISRITEE -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET THET

Lease liabilities HEAE
Non-current FERB 4,154 8,201
Current mE 5,774 5013

9,928 13,214

ﬂ ANNUAL REPORT £ 22/23 147
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AR B IS SRR B X

|6 LEASES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

l6 HE#)

(i)

REE W as R Z R

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAET
Depreciation e
Included in cost of sales BREEHEEXAR 4,252 3763
Included in administrative expenses BETEEH 1,925 2,087
6,177 5,850
Interest expenses included in A ER
finance cost (Note 9) FEFZ (MEE9) 457 345
Expense relating to leases of FHEHEEECHEE
short-term and low-value leases 0 & A 7,031 6,830

For the year ended 30th June 2023, the total cash outflow for leases
amounted to HK$5,268,000 (2022: HK$5,038,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use
assets during the year ended 30th June 2023 were approximately
HK$ 1,993,000 (2022: HK$9,569,000).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

RETHERDF

(iii)

REE-P-=£XA=+A

IHFE HEReRHERES
52680008 L(Z&F = =
5,038,000 7T) ©
rEECHEZTEHRAEAK

y.2:n
AEBHEAEZERAERMK
FE-HEAGR—KAEA—ERF
WETHR  EREEAEE
EEEREEE RTX(WV)
NEE - RBEE-_T-_=FX
A=tBLHFEZEREEE
A4 5 1,993,0008 T( ==
— 4 :9569,000/7T) °

BOHARMNBEERRGEBD
E Y EBREREZTRMGR
KftF - REBEAREHESR
EFESEMERI  BEWHZ
TREUHROGRK - FETH
EEENSBIEERER -
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AW ERRM T
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
At beginning of the year F9) 155,160 155,013
Fair value gains on investment KEWMEZ RABEWE
properties (Note 7) (PftEE7) 2,439 147
Currency translation differences PE N ZRR (2,173) —
At end of the year FAR 155,426 155,160
As at 30th June 2023, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation BEZZZ=%~A=+H &%
for future repair and maintenance (2022: Nil). B —SHRENRERBEHD

EREB(ZE__F : &)

(a)  Fair value hierarchy (a) AAEEFEE
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair TRMBGEESTIZAAE
value, by valuation method. BEARNKEEDE -

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAB=1THFAEARH

TABEBAELD
DNABEE(EIE)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Recurring fair value measurements KEURAABEETE
Investment properties: KREWE -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IEREBN—FE 128,000 127,000
— Car park units - Hong Kong —fFEL BB 3,730 3,160
— Commercial office units — —EERAEEN
Mainland China — B A 5,598 7,143
— Industrial building units — Mainland China —ITERAREEMN
—PER 18,098 17,857

155,426 155,160
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R SRR
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWME @)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) RAEEREE)
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair REENBRANEHERED
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in EHFBERNENBEE - BR
circumstances that caused the transfer. NARBEER R ER -
There was no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year. REANLTEE | - F2REIE
e Y B 4
The following table presents the changes in investment properties TRETRBE_ZT_=FK
with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs ZEZFAAZ=THIEFE
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2023 and 2022. AFAEATABRREANQ
REEAE(EIE)NRED
LT
2023
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
B A it b wme
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET
Opening balance HIf AR 25,000 130,160 155,160
Net gains from fair NABEAE
value adjustment Woas 348 869 1,570 2,439
Currency translation differences BN ER (2,173) — (2,173)
Closing balance HY SR A 80 23,696 131,730 155,426
2022
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
H R A9 3 & e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET
Opening balance Hi W4t 6 25,863 129,150 155,013
Net (loss)/gain from fair AREEAE(EB)/
value adjustment Woas 348 (863) 1,010 147
Closing balance HiiR ek 25,000 130,160 155,160
T ——
F 1
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$155,426,000 (2022: HK$155,160,000) as at 30th June 2023
by Chung, Chan & Associates (2022: Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited), an independent professionally qualified valuer
who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. Certain of the investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating lease arrangements, further summary
details of which are included in Note |7(e) to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to

the prior year valuation report; and

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

SRR

17 REWME#E)

(b)

& B 15 1E 7
AEBWREMERBLIEE
HEMEBEET(ZEZZF -
I BRI HFRERAA)
ZECI=EFRIFISFER
A=+H81{&E% 155,426,000%
T(=F = — 4 : 155,160,000
BIT)  WIEERFERAR
AEEER  WHAHENR
B EHERN MBI R EE AT
BBy - MHIREBEWENE S
MERHHBETE=7 - E—
FHBEREGTB®REMTE
| 7(e) R IEEE °

REE M H AL B R B A
HEIAEMNBEETR
Ao M ERAERELR
REER - BRKEERRE
B ER R (L ERP R & & s b B
MIEMHRAER -

EEEMRFEER - S

8

s REHUBUMERSED
IBEEXRBEA

e HEWEGMERLEFE
HERELRTHE
g N

o  BEBFYMEETAW

REEBREEH F3BAR
BEENEHHEREERR
- MR BB AR AT AR
M -
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AR B IS SRR B X

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally

determined using the income capitalisation method which largely

involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account

the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases

and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields"). These

significant unobservable inputs include:

17 REWME#E)

(c) T1HEHM
FMAEANTAEEG ALY
NAREESE

AEENREME A NEE
ARB A E - BITEE
ERAIABRBA > XEE
EREHENREESRES
HERAXHWERERTER
RWERAR - WFEKRTT

AERBARE

Fair value at Relationship of

30th June 2023 unobservable inputs

RZZZ=f Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~AA=TA technique inputs unobservable inputs TABREA
i ZRAEE fhER i FUBREA FUBRAAEE HAABEENERE

HK$'000
TER

Industrial building units - Hong Kong 128,000 Income  Unit passing rents HK$10.00 - HK$12.03 The higher the rental value,
I5AEEN-FH capitalisation BAIRKHE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method FEAREA 10008 and vice versa

Wk En0ET  BEER 2AEEER

RZ A

Yields 2.89% -3.73% The higher the Yields,

ZE% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa

EREHE  AMEEME

RZ A

Car park units - Hong Kong 3730 Income Unit passing rents HK$6,000 - HK$10225 The higher the rental value,
FEf-F# capitalisation B RRAE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method GEMFA6000ET and vice versa

Yeghik 210058 BESR ArEESR

R TR
Yields 6.71% - 8.37% The higher the Yields,
45% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa

ZR%45 MABEYE

R

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - RE{THRAF
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(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

17 REWME#E)

(c) T1EERIM (&)

Fair value at Relationship of

30th June 2023 unobservable inputs

R-B-=% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~A=tH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRAA
i ZAnEE fhERE  FIRRBA FUBEBAEE HAABEENERE

HK$'000
TR

Commercial office units and 5598 Income  Unit passing rents RMB22.41 per month The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BURKHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAEEN-PEAL method YAAEA and vice versa

Yok NAARE  HEER AAEEES

R TR

Yields 221% The higher the Yields,

Lox% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa

ZR%EE  AARELE

RZ TR

Industrial building units — Mainland China 18,098 Income  Unit passing rents RMB10.73 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREEM-HEAL capitalisation  ERIRKAE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method §YHABA and vice versa

Witk 073ARE  BESS “AEEES:

RZ TR
Yields 7.08% The higher the Yields,
ZBX% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
BEHE  AABEME
&2 TR

¥
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AR B IS SRR B X

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 REWME#E)

(c) T1EERIM (&)

Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2022 unobservable inputs
RZBZZF Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRHA
Hi ZARfEE BRI FUBERGA FERGALE HRABENER
HK$'000
TATL
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 127,000 Income  Unit passing rents HK$10.70 — HK$11.00 The higher the rental value,
IEAEEf-FE capitalisation BAIREHME  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYAREA 1070ET and vice versa
W% EI0ET  HESS AAEEER
Rz A
Yields 327% - 353% The higher the Yields,
8% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
EERHWE  RABEME -
Rz /A
Car park units - Hong Kong 3,160 Income  Unit passing rents HK$4,850 — HK$5,650 The higher the rental value,

R -F

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

capitalisation

- RETHERDF

method

Witk

BARRHRE
Yields
%I%\I_é

per month per unit
BEMFA48508T
E5650%T

5.74% - 5.82%

RESS  AREEER

the higher the fair value,

and vice versa

of

ot

RZ IR

The higher the Yields,
the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

BEER  AABEEE

RZ A
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mamBERmE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWE @)
(c) Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1EEHMW(E)
Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2022 unobservable inputs
e ‘S Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1A technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEEHA
i ZRREE fbERl  TTBEREA FBEZEAEE HRABENEE
HK$'000
TAT
Commercial office units and 7,143 Income  Unit passing rents RMB57.90 per month The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BURKHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAEEN-PEAL method SYHKEA and vice versa
e STOARE  BESS AAEESE
R
Yields 1.9% The higher the Yields,
Lox% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZRXHE RABEBE:

Rz A

Industrial building units — Mainland China 17,857 Income  Unit passing rents RMB10.00 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREEM-HEAL capitalisation  ERIRKAE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method §YHABA and vice versa

Yotk 000ARE  BESS “AEEES:

Rz A

Yields 6.81% The higher the Yields,

ZBX% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
BEHE  AABEME
&2

¥

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year. FREERNE EEAEE o
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R SRR
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWME @)

(d) As at 30th June 2023, the fair value of investment properties (d RZZE-_ZFXA=+H ' #&
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to & 1) % AR ¥ {8 4940,010,000
approximately HK$40,010,000 (2022: HK$39,368,000). HIT(Z 2= =4 1 39,368,000

BLIEEMTFRT REAE
EBSIRITIEE -
(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non- (e) MEBETABENKCEEE - K
cancellable operating leases are as follows: R REWEERIBELT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
Not later than one year —F R 5,895 5,460
Later than one year and not later than five years —F BB NMER A F 1,873 2,834
7,768 8,294
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 |ILEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Technical know-how %9l 0 58
Cost BN 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation BET#H (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BREFE — —

During the years ended 30th June 2023 and 2022, the Directors assessed REBEZZ_=FR_T__FX

the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the A=1TRLEEER EFERAR

carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its Moz T EEEY RAEEE
future use and full provision was made. BEAFREERRERP YD - AL

FIEL 2R -

156 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« ZE4THERAF




19

20

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (“FVOCI”)

SRR

19 BRAREFAHMER

Financial asset at FVOCI:
BB E
ELETBES R

Equity securities, unlisted

BRARBESAEME2EKES

WENTHEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAET
2,344 2943

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2022: 3.6%) equity interest in
an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount

is denominated in HK dollar.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 are disclosed
in Note 36.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2023 was HK$25,155,000
(2022: HK$33,787,000), of which HK$26,742,000 (2022: HK$34,495,000)
was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited
(“NHEPML™). The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries

were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMB8,282,000 (2022:
RMB15,336,000), equivalent to approximately HK$9,002,000 (2022:
HK$18,257,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the region, other
than through normal dividends or remittance of revenue income through

import/export companies.

BRER AR E W5
EERRREXBHARMSEM
ZHELETRBZENZ=ZFN(ZF
ToFCADZZENERD S
BUABTRELL -

20 MIEAE]

R-E-_=FA=1+HWHTEHKH
BRRIMFBERKIGE36HE -

BEARHEZEFI
R-ZE_=FXA=Z1+HHIFEE
H B 25 42 %8 525,155,000 L(=
T = — 33787000 v ) 0 H
F126,742,000% T(=Z & = =
34495000,%7E)FEA%xliI%”¢ﬂﬂ
ERAB([FETEBR]) -
Hhft BN T B e FEIE S s I T E
7( o

/\/\

EARSH
RETRBRNASRENTRE
#;8282000A R (= T = =
115336000 R ¥ (% &
#99,002,000% T(= & = =
18,257,000 4 7T ) ) 7 BUE # B i, -
X E A INE B BIFTIRE o ILFEI
P & il PR ) 7% & < [ 1 A BIRANCGE
BEFRMEABAEHOQAES
Wz RIBRAI) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A SRR MY aE

20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

4

20 BB T (&)

BARYF ()
ABEAFZE # e r) I 8B 2 A]AY
THEYHEER

PN R ENE 2L
SR BARNRENEEFR -

Summarised balance sheet BELEREX
NHEPML
RETRBE
plopk} 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current mE
Assets BE 95,691 154,533
Liabilities af& (33,704) (64,390)
Current net assets FREEE 61,987 90,143
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 38,400 42,132
Liabilities aE (274) (2,860)
Non-current net assets FIERBEE 38,126 39,272
Net assets FEE 100,113 129,415
Rt 26,742 34,495

Accumulated non-controlling interests

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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R SRR MR
20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 B2 R4
Material non-controlling interests (Continued) BRI ()
Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive income HEY K R 2 E K
NHEPML
REIRER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
Revenue Wz 134,930 285,524
Profit before income tax R 50 Al g 7,186 46,858
Income tax credit/(expense) MR e, () 2,538 (10,674)
Post-tax profit PR 1% 5 9,724 36,184
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEla — —
Total comprehensive income PHEW =BT 9,724 36,184
Total comprehensive income allocated to HEWBER
non-controlling interests PR FEHE il #E 21 1,565 10,604
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest SRR il o (7,949) (7,997)
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 BB T (&)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) BRI ()
Summarised cash flows HER T REF
NHEPML
REIREHR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZRER
Cash generated from operations REXBMEEZRE 39,031 47516
Income tax paid PS5 (7,028) (1,934)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBREEZ FRE 32,003 45,582
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBKAERAZER S (3,806) (7,946)
Net cash used in financing activities MEXBAERAZFRE (45,754) (43,958)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEZED (17,557) (6,322)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzRERREEH
of year 31,920 38,242
Currency translation differences M H Z R (1,587) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEeLREER 12,776 31,920

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

21 INVENTORIES 21 B8
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
R THT
Trading stocks BIEBEERE 157,592 265319
Raw materials R 74,304 109,398
Finished goods K i 35,042 38,751
266,938 413,468
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of REEE W R A HE KA
sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately RERAIIFEFEREAEGHDR
HK$94 1,608,000 (2022: HK$1,342,641,000). 941,608,000 T(= & = =

1,342,641,00087T) °

Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$7,480,000 7N & B K F E 5 7,480,000% T
(2022: HK$1,904,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the (ZZT = =% 1,904,000/ 70) 2 17
consolidated income statement. HRBEEH  UREERERANE
ERAR ALK -
22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 EZREBRRERRERE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FHETT

Trade receivables =GN 184,072 214,196
Less: loss allowance W EWHORE R (4,689) (5,305)

179,383 208,891

Bills receivables XSS 37,863 24,251
217,246 233,142
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RS B A SRR MY aE

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

22 BEZERUREEREE@®)
BSRWHNEERENTIEE A
£

currencies: 5 :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T T
HK$ BT 30,118 76,978
RMB AR 143,999 111,507
usD ETT 9,955 25,711
184,072 214,196

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables

as the Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90
days. The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance
bill.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date were as

BHRBRZEEELEZERAEE

HRAY

HRASERAEREZEZFE M
NESRESRLEBEERODESZ

R -

AEBRBOBEENEERLA=T
ENTH - EHBUEAMRERITEA

HERUETT -

BIRUKILBERRA ZIRE DT

follows: T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Below 90 days 0-90H 173,159 197,952
91 - 180 days 91-180H 6,208 | 1,083
Over 180 days HBiE 180 H 4,705 5161
184,072 214,196

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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ARSI

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 EERURKREVREE®)
Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are FBUREECHHBEXFESE—ANT
denominated in the following currencies: B ARG, RER :

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT TR

HK$ BT — 446

usD eI 205 583
RMB ARE 37,658 23,222

37,863 24,251
The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and EHREEREEREAAEEMN
there is no recent history of default on bills receivable. A N ol I e =R 2 HE R A0 8% o
Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance RZBZ=F"A=+AXEE
bills amounting to approximately HK$9,660,000 (2022: HK$12,735,000) M B A 7)1 499,660,000 L (=&
with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2023. The transactions Z 4 £ 12,735,000 7T ) B #R 1T A&
have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 30). HEZGR TRITUGEDRE - F
AR 505 AT A RTT B (K

730) o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period EREEE  ERARRN &SRR
is the carrying values of the receivables (2022: same). The Group does not EER PR REVRHEREE
hold any collateral as security. ZTEZ_F: HRA) c REBETHE

BEAESERNERR -
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RS B A SRR MY aE

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

DEPOSITS

23

HEWRE  AARR
rE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FAT

Other receivables Hofth & e R 4,869 13,006

Prepayments AN 17,694 33,829

Deposits ®’e 2,305 1,989

24,868 48,824

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fTHEEWMI A

As at 30th June 2023, the Group had one (2022: one) outstanding forward RZB_=FA=1+H Kx&H
foreign exchange contract of HK$ 135,000 (2022: HK$296,000) mainly to B—H(ZE-_—_F: —fp)HE

purchase USD (2022: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal

amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June
2023 was HK$ 156,000,000 (2022: HK$358,800,000).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

RETHERDF

V /N

135,00078 7o( = F = = F : 296,000
BILIZARBINERBHAENHES
NBET(ZE==_F: BXEx)°
RZE_=FA=+tHIEERX
WHNERBEHN 2 RmREASHE
#156,000,0008 (=& = =
358,800,000 7T ) °
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SRR

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 BERREEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents () BERELEZEH

plopk} 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ExT FHET
Cash on hand RE MR 650 720
Bank balances RITAERR 149,987 178,206
150,637 178,926
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ReRBEeSBUTINER R

currencies: =iV

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

HK$ BTT 11,699 23,634

RMB AR® 101,348 111,703

UsD ETT 37,404 43322

Others HAl 186 267

150,637 178,926
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank IRITAEBBIBZRARITERLZ

deposit rates. R ENF R ERERA S o

The Group's cash and cash equivalents of HK$108,903,000 (2022: AEERSRRSEHEHL
HK$127,876,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China. 108,903,000/ (= & = =
The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to 1 127,876,000 7T ) A
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the Government of Wiz R1T7ETF - BERESR
Mainland China. EHFEALESRRTER

HBR S B e 2 SN B AR 16 ©
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R SRR
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 25 RERREEHE @)
(b) Restricted bank deposits (b) ZERHRMITFEH
As at 30th June 2023, RMB33,196,000 (equivalent to ZTEZ=FXA=+H"
HK$36,082,000) (2022: RMB32,590,000 (equivalent to 33,196,000 A R #(% & %
HK$38,797,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for 36,082,000 7T )(=Z & = =
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 30). 132,590,000 A R ¥ (% &
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2022: #738,797,000 % 7T ) ) /5 X BR
|.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months BERTTIE R - ERRRITIER
after the balance sheet date. RITRHBRERNEERE
(M43E30) - ZRHEVERTTER
WREBFADZ —HERH(Z
E__F:BEMHZ-HLH)
ZEEMNE - YREERER
HEVRESRBAR DR+ —@A -
26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26 EZENRRENRE
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as BORNARENRBERERBZ
follows: REITAT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 55,692 85,730
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 70 750
Over 180 days BB 180 H 1,007 856
56,769 87,336
The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair B RN RENRE 2 REEH
values, and are denominated in the following currencies: HAABEBES WA TIEEAR
B
2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
RMB AR 33,957 35,326
usD e 22,812 52,010
T
56,769 87,336
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SRR

27 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 27 HttENRERBEREA
ACCRUALS
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THT
Contract liabilities BHAE 9,005 9,510
Provision for litigation (Note) SFEARE M (PHEE) — 3,520
Other payable and accruals HivfEI R TERRE A 27,991 38,476
36,996 51,506
Note: DER
In accordance to a judgement dated 29th January 2021 from Wenling City $EB§$§?}I%}§E$/\EE§ZEE’;\:%§:*
People’s Court of Zhejiang Province, the Group was held liable to pay a customer ii‘iﬂ STABMHR . HEAKEE
compensation amounted to RMB2,957,000 (equivalent to approximately EJEEJE‘EE1§§1§%2?57,000AE%§%@
HK$3,520,000). Such subsidiary is liquidated during the year ended 30th June 2023 #93,520000%7T) - ZMBLAIRBE=
T — — - f— B \ZE
and the Group recognised a gain on liquidation in “other gains/(losses), net”. Fo=FANAZTELEFRBHERARS
BE[E bz, (B51R) —F 8 |h#ER
e H s -
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RE R ERRMIEE
28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 28 BARRAGE
Share capital KRR
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
SREE RAEE
0.10TZ HK$’000
ZERHE FEx
Authorised: SREMA
At st July 2021, 30th June 2022, RZE-_—F+tH—H-
I'st July 2022 and 30th June 2023 —E-_FXA=+H"
—E-F+H—H
M—E-=ZFA=1+H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHRRA
At Ist July 2021, 30th June 2022, R_Z-_—FtHF—A8 "
I'st July 2022 and 30th June 2023 ZEZZFXA=+H-
T FEA-AR
—E-ZFXA=1H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium B E
HK$°000
FTERT
At Ist July 2021, 30th June 2022, W—_Z-_—FtHF—A8 "
Ist July 2022 and 30th June 2023 ZEFXA=+H"
T FEA-AR
ZEZ=FXA=TH 62,466
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RS M IS ER R EE

29 RESERVES 29 f#&E

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve Retained
EX Sub-total eamings Total

ROME 0 REWH 43
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TER

At It July 2021 WZE=—-%tA-H 3119) 9,640 1472 5,738 60,731 428,300 489,031
Profit for the year RERF = = = = = 56,598 56,598
Currency translation differences EXEHR — - - 34 34 - 34
Fair value gain of BARBEFAEMZENE
financial asset at FVOC| M BEEz M BERE = = 516 = 516 S 516

2020202 final dividends paid RZT=Z%/

R -FERERE - - - — = (14,768) (14,768)
2021/2022 interim dividend paid ¥ ZE=—/

“RoCFERHRS - = = = = (5538) (5538)
At 30th June 2022 WZB-Z4X~A=1AH 3119) 9,640 1988 52,772 61,281 464592 525,873
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e B I R R RE
29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 fafE )
Other reserves
Hitfte
Financial asset
at FVOCl
reserve
Capital BRANEE Exchange
reserve stARAt  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation ~ 2EKEH reserve Retained
EAGRE reserve HBEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
(M) EfifRfE W NERE Mt REER am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR B B THAR TR TR TAR
At Ist July 2022 RZE-Z_f+A—-H (3,119) 9,640 1,988 52,772 61,281 464,592 525,873
Loss for the year RERHE = = = = = (52,007) (52,007)
Currency translation differences ERERE - - - (52,299) (52,299) — (52,299)
Currency translation differences BE-FNBAT
released upon liquidation RRRERZE
of a subsidiary — — — (1,789) (1,789) — (1,789)
Fair value loss of BRAABEFAEMZERS
financial asset at FVOCI maﬁ%é@zm@@@% - - #31) - #31) = #31)
20212022 final dividend paid YR=F=—/
R _FERERE = = = = = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2023 RZFBZ=F,A=1H (3,119) 9,640 1,557 (1,316) 6,762 405,201 411,963
Note: BiHsE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Capital reserve from reorganisation (note (a)) BAREEBEA () 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without T%@(%f&? il 7 B BT B8
change of control (note (b)) NERESEE (M (b)) (3,527) (3.527)
3,119) (3,119)
(a)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (2 AEEZENEETIREERBRE
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and BRAA EBRZRIELERN EE
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the ER—NNEERQAIREEES
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital BTBADPEITZRAEBERR
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the BATREEN B A R 2 RAEEERE
I -'? "Reorganisation”). MEZER -
/ (b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the (b) ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ%%"ﬂ%é?ﬁﬁ
! change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control. (R EIEHIRE) PTE £ B AN
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SRR

30 B/ITEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Bank loans due for repayment within ER—FABEZRITEXK
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —BEM(MEE3.1(e)) 143,449 75,007
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FER—FABEZET
within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) WERER—
BHER(FIFE3.1(e)) 185,813 305,085
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 22) RITANRRRBR (M 22) 9,660 12,735
338,922 392,827
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their rEEBECEREEREAAEE
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's HE - WA TINEE RER :
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THET
HK$ BT 129,287 237,677
RMB AR¥ 30,313 19,878
usD e 179,322 135272
338,922 392,827

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out

in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause are as follows:

R4
i
W
B
S
b=lll3
-+
i
jui|
i
N
mE
i
K
b

2023

HK$'000
TET

Within | year

—FR

338,922

2022
HK$'000
TAT

392,827

¥
A

‘b
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R SRR
30 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30 RITEE@®

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the REEABXRAXRKE 2 EREF
weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: KEFHH AR X EFIHFEET
2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THT

— at fixed rates — BEE = 338,922 374,213
— at floating rates —HEFIE — 18,614
338,922 392,827

2022

HK$ RMB usD

BT ARK e

Trust receipt loans ErEBIRE R 6.43% —  686%  3.05% —  325%
Short-term bank loans 2 HIRTTE R 5.97%  4.35% —  240%  435% —

Bank advances for IRITARER RIB BN
discounted bills — 2.93% — — 2.29% —
Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment RITERUAEREETLDNDE - K
(Note 15), leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16), investment B REEMEIS)  HEI R
properties (Note |7) and restricted bank deposits (Note 25(b)) of the HfE AR RE(HTE 16) ~ 1 E W 2 (M
Group. A 17) KRR BRI EY R 17 7 SCHT
25(b)) AER -

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted P38 A 2 REIR R AL IR T IR1T
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance FIERITRRE S AEMRLORT
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the PR RNEEBERALFURRR
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 22) and short-term borrowings TARIERERABRZERBETER
respectively at the end of the reporting period. SRBRERAEEZEFEKRF R

JEW R (M5 22) RAEHEE -
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eI ImRMIEE
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 ELERIA
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EBETEARNITHNBEERIEBEE
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current ERBAENEBEREERE  BERELAH
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to SRS KRR — SR - R AR
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after ST EERBBEEEEE - &
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: ABEEER S THSRNES

BERBRAIIK

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Deferred income tax assets EIEFIBEE E 9,102 9,090
Deferred income tax liabilities RIERIEEE (6,275) (6,261)
2,827 2,829

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: FREEMESHEENFZEMT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THT

At beginning of the year F9) 2,829 3,636
Credited/(charged) to consolidated income TEiRAWERETA/ (HIR)

statement (Note 10) (K5 10) 152 (807)

Currency translation differences i X =5 (154) —

At end of the year FR 2,827 2,829
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A B I ERR A EE
31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

EIERIE (47)
ERNECHERERAEY B8 (R
B — B R 2 AT I T -

31

Fair value gains on

Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties  depreciation Withholding Tax Total
RENE
EEHEEE: DMAEERE MR BN E AER BE
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ELEROOE HK$'000 MElEX0E HK$000 MelEXUOA HK$'000 MalEXUE HK$'000
v TETEER v TET B TET B THET
At beginning of the year E1) 615 860 4931 4,425 1,644 — 7,190 5285
Charged/(credited) to EiEaER
consolidated income statement n/ (GTA) 247 (245 (18Y) 506 — 644 62 1905
Currency translation differences ERES (52) - (207) — (143) - (402) —
At end of the year G 810 615 4539 4931 1,501 [644 6,850 7,190
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
EEHREE £ BBER HRBRHIE nE
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
LEUON HK$'000 Mal€Xl HK$'000 NElEYVUN HK$'000 MalEXUl HK$000
syl T ERecd TAET ERwhd TET ERwd TET
At beginning of the year, as restated S #](& &%) 7373 6187 490 509 2,156 2215 10019 892l
Credited/(charged) to consolidated ~ {EARA M@K
income statement A/ (1K) 566 1,186 (205) 29)  (147) (59) 214 1,098
Currency translation differences B =R (370) - — - (186) — (556) -
At end of the year X 7,569 7373 285 490 1,823 2,156 9,677 10019
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - RE{THRAF =
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2023, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to approximately HK$359,161,000 (2022: HK$326,277,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$9,827,000 (2022:
HK$17,037,000) will expire from 2024 to 2028 (2022: 2023 to 2027). The
potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to approximately HK$60,097,000
(2022: HK$55,284,000).

As at 30th June 2023, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland subsidiaries
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$418,263,000 (2022:
HK$389,377,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. At 30th June 2023,
deferred income tax amounted to approximately HK$1,501,000 (2022:
HK$1,644,000) has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of withholding tax attributable to unremitted profit
earned by a Mainland subsidiary of the Group that shall be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

31

SRR

IEFE B IE (47)

HAEBHREEEMERNELTRH
SHEEERNEB MBI ESE
AREERRRERRBFER NI
DM E_ZFNA=ZFTH &K
5 B 30 4% 5t AT 45 8% LUK 8 oK SR B AR
T U 25 O B 75 B5 18 49 359,161,000 78
TL(ZF = =4 : 326,277,000/ 7T )
e R XE BT 45 B & 2= #9 60,097,000

B (& = = £ :55284,000/8
L) BT -_MWMFE-_FT =N
FZFZZF:ZFZ=ZFE

—E LR )R BEBELY
59,827,000 (= T = = F:
17,037,000 7%) °

R-ZBE-=FA=1+8 x5H
WARETHPERNBHBARZE
ik B R B 3R & M) 2k 49418,263,000
Bt (= & = = 4 : 389,377,000/
TIZERZEERTCHERE -
EAREE A2 YRR #
B LWERRAIRZ B RZEL
FEBAglTgfb T -_=
FRA=ZTH REEHR —FEFE
AL B A R 2 R R 2 % Rk A g
DEEREUKRIERZ M A TEBRAIE
431,501,000 L(ZE = ZF -
1,644,000 87T ) 2 IEFER B -
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32 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a)

generated from operations:

32 MEBRERER

Br 5 B s FY SR A R E
ZREHEE -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BiAT (&18), & (50,860) 88,927
Adjustments for: HEIEE:
— Depreciation of property, —mE - BER
plant and equipment RIBITE 15,840 18,565
— (Gains)/losses on disposal of property, —HEYE  BER
plant and equipment =iz (W), /B8 7) 539
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —ERREENE 6,177 5,850
— Exchange differences —EHEH — —
— Fair value (gains)/losses on —INEERHIEHN AR
forward exchange contracts BE(KE), &8 (136) 273
— Gain on liquidation —MBAREERE
of a subsidiary (5,062) —
— Unrealised fair value gains on - RERREWMEZ AR
investment properties EERE (2,439) (147)
— Provision for loss allowance —B S RYGREE
on trade receivables & 883 535
— Provision for impairment —FERBEEBEE
of inventories, net — 5 7,480 1,904
— Interest income —FEHA (686) (898)
— Interest expense —FBEZH 17,309 8,470
Changes in working capital: BEESEE :
— Inventories —-FE 119,014 (177,048)
— Trade and bills receivables, —BHRUHR KRB -
other receivables, SR E MUK
prepayments and deposits BRNREZE® 23,354 26,449
— Trade and bills payables, —BHENFRRER
other payables, 2B HENRR
deposits received and accruals PRI & RTERER (36,890) 3,796
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEISFTES, (5H)
ZH& 93,977 (22,785)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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SRR

32 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 32 KERERERM®
(Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (b) EHEREREZA HE
sales of property, plant and equipment comprise: ¥ - BERRER FEH
=22
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Net book amount (Note |5) AREDFE (MH3E 15) 183 539
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEMHE. BENRE
plant and equipment (Note 8) Z BB (KMEEs) 7 (539)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERZRE
plant and equipment SIESE 190 —

ﬂ ANNUAL REPORT &% 22/23 177
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FE M IERRMEE
32 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 32 RERERER M)
(Continued)
(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BEXBEEERBEH
activities is as follows: wmr
Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BITHE HESE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THER TERT
At Ist July 2021 RZZ=Z—FtA—H 319,708 8,798 328,506
Cash flow WER
— Proceed from bank loans —FIGIRITERN 583,778 — 583,778
— Repayment of bank loans —EERITER (575,841) — (575,841)
— Decrease in trust receipt loans ~ —{E5EBUEE R D 65,182 — 65,182
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERHEEE — (5,038) (5,038)
Non-cash changes R EH
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEREEM — 9,569 9,569
— Exchange differences —[EHERE — (115) (115)
At 30th June 2022 RZEBE-_—FA=1+H 392,827 13214 406,04 |
Cash flow WER
— Proceed from bank loans —FIERITER 960,559 — 960,559
— Repayment of bank loans —EREBTER (893,464) = (893,464)
— Increase in trust receipt loans ~ — {2 FEURIE B FRIE AN (120,379) = (120,379)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERMEEEE — (5,268) (5,268)
Non-cash changes R EE
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEREEM — 1,993 1,993
— Exchange differences —ERERE (621) (1) (632)
At 30th June 2023 RZZEZ=F,"A=+AH 338,922 9,928 348,850
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33 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

At 30th June 2023, the Group had the following capital commitments
for addition of property, plant and equipment:

A IR RMIEE
33 &IE
(a) EBEXERE

R-ZE_=FXA=+tB XK
SEERYE BEMREBZ
BAEGENT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Contracted but not provided for EHENEREH 1,439 976
(b) Other commitments (b) Hftt#EE

On 15th June 2022, the Group entered into a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement with an agent of the Mainland China local
government authority to lease an industrial building premise for 5
years with a minimum lease payment of RMBI | per square meter.
During the non-cancellable lease period, the Group commits an
accumulated three years tax payment of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$10,870,000), including the corporate income
tax and value added tax, from its business operation in the region to
the Mainland China local government authority. Any shortfall on the
committed tax payment would result in a 15% increase in monthly

lease payment in the subsequent year.

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

RZEZ=ZFA+HAB ' &
SRR —TEREEEYWE—
HR B X 3 b 77 IBROAT X B MR
E-RHBRAFZTAIRBELES
HEAH REHEEABFRH
KITARE - RATIHUEEHE
ESEAN - AEEFBRR=F
e UMb (@ 2 7 5 S A %
H B A i T RS B A
& 1K 10,000,000 A R ¥ (& &
#910,870,000% 7t ) 2 FRIE(B
BREMESBRIGER) - £
AR B2 RERIBE R BER
FHNBFAMES ELAESZ
+3# -

34 BEBALIRS
AL E H Good Benefit Limited (£
REERRBEEEMKZ 2 AR
TH HEEAAFTE P Z2AT=
B KBS 2T NE
tE#EAEZHF A ° Good Benefit
Limited BE L REH RIEBHAR T

ZEP

DEFESHA -
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note 4

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties

In addition to those disclosed in Note |4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

BBALRZ @)
AATREEFARRAREE L
EZEWAR  HFEHFMENE
AETBRMARME 14 5 -

(a) HEBEALTHXE
Brira BRI 14 PRI ER
Sh - EREAEE AN THITHRZ S
T

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Lease payment to related parties: TRABA LT 2HENK
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —SBAERAF(METEG)) 988 1,044
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BAEBRHERAAE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEADY 946 967
— Mr. Hui Sai Chung (Note (iii)) — B ER S A (M3 (iii)) 300 328
2,234 2,339
Addition of right-of-use assets: EFEE AR
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —SBERAFT(MTEG)) 1,149 1,933
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BRZBRHEBRAA
Company Limited (Note (ii)) (PREE (i) 844 636
1,993 2,569
Notes: BT

() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a
Director of the Company.

(i)~ Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly
owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

(i)~ Mr. HUI Sai Chung is a Director of the Company.

Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE

() SRARQAREARRARES
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iy BREBERHEBRIFTHR
REERTEKREERTEH
ﬁo

(iy FFHEREER/ANRIESE o

XA TR A LA HER
RIE TR EERFTY



T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Year-end balance arising from related party transactions

34 BBALIXRS @)

(b) BBALXZEKEGE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Lease liabilities to related parties: TREBATZHESE
— Build Fair Limited —RBARRAF 816 1,775
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —ARZERBRHMBR LA
Company Limited 1,183 959
— Mr. Hui Sai Chung — AL A 688 135
2,687 2,869
35 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 35 BRAERAT
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in EERREARAZIREERRER
the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. Good Benefit Limited (£ 2 J& # f X
BHSEMASZZRAE]) o
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36 TEMBEAF

36

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and

R-ZE-_=FR_T-_F,XA

2022: =tHR ARBAZEEMBRFMN
™
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name ML, S i B ERTRAE Principal activities rEBZHZ
=1 R+ EANER RE&EMER EREK FrEkER
2022
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100 100
Company Limited RBHEBARES 1003 7T REER
(Note b) (P%EDb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100 100

Materials Limited
RaREERBREARAF

*wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000 47T

enterprise
REIAM
NEBELE

colorants and
compounded plastic resins
SERHERERR
EB AR
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FE B HRRM T
36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 TEMBEAT M)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and RZZBZ_=FR_T__FXA
2022: (Continued) =+H ARRZEEHMBRRN
T (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
*kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SR, R R ERTRER Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrEEREE
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Manufacture and trading of 100 100
Technology Limited B% shares of HK$ | each colorants and compounded
REZEERAT 500,000 I &R EE plastic resins
BT & B HEREEEEHRK
EE AR
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic products
RETRZEHARAT 2,000,000 f& & AR EI B SUETIREBER
BT BB
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding and 100 100
Materials Limited a5 shares of HK$ | each property holding
REBBRHMARLDA 1,000 R AR E (B REEREFEDME
BT B
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS$ I each (Note c)
500,000 & AR E{E
BT B EHE
BFER (T c)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Materials (Hong Kong) N shares of HK$ | each HEEBRBRER
Limited 500,000 X B Ak E A
REZBRH(FE) BT B
BR AT

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDTE
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36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and

2022: (Continued)

A IR RMIEE
36 FEMEB LB &)
RZE-Z=FR_FT-__F<HAH
=+H NAZEBHE A RW
(&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

*kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SR, R R EERTREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrEkER
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Co., Limited *wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
FEREERBRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAA A SUENHEERERER
EBELE EE AR
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$10,500,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Co., Limited *wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 BT colorants and compounded
EERELBRE enterprise plastic resins
BR QA REIA SUENHERERER
EBELE &8 AP
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
REEAZERR AT O shares of HK$ | each plastic products
5000 BHEE  RERKEZBEM
BT BER
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) *wholly foreign-owned 200,000 37T plastic products
Co., Limited enterprise BEIREBER
RITRERM(LE) FEI A
BRLA EBELE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Mainland China US$100,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Co. Limited *wholly foreign-owned 100,000% 7T compounded plastic resins
EEREREERAF enterprise BEEQARES
A3 A BB Bs
IEBELE

y

-~
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Company Limited
RERTIRENBRAF
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36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 FEMBEAR 4
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and RZZBZ_=FR_T__FXA
2022: (Continued) =+ RNAIZEEKN B AR
T (%&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
*kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SR, R R ERTRER Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrEkER
2022
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited B% shares of HK$ | each plastic products
RETREE(FE) 1,000,000 & & AR EI 1B BEETREZBEM
BRARA] BT & B
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$1,200,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Plastic Materials Company  *wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 7T colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise plastic resins
EFRBEITER R PR A BEREEECE R
BRAA NEBELE E=R=r= gl
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R #& BEEZRBRE
BMMRZEESHERLDF  enterprise
B A
*SEBERE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Company Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each biodegradable plastic
RAERRBHARAR] 10,000 R EREE materials
BT EBR RENHERREBRR
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 762
Plastic (Dongguan) *wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 % 7T plastic products
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36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and

2022: (Continued)

A IR RMIEE
36 FEMEB LB &)
RZE-Z=FR_FT-__F<HAH
=+H NAZEBHE A RW
(&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name ML AT B ERTRAEE Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R EmE R ITERK FrERER
Shanghai Coltec Advanced Mainland China US$200,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Materials & Technologies ~ *wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins
Company Limited enterprise BEEGCHRER
Rabisl YU R e REs FEIA A R Bs
BRLA EBELE
Monceris Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 84.5 84.5
BEBERAT BB shares of HK$ | each REER
10,000 B &%
HE BT
BB
Monceris (Shanghai) Materials Mainland China RMB1,000,000  Trading of colorants and 84.5 84.5
Technology Limited *wholly foreign - owned 1,000,000 AR compounded plastic resins
ZEB(EE)MERR enterprise BEEZBENRER
BRAA FEAM A PR Bs
SEBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic Mainland China HK$3,000,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 7C  compounded plastic resins
REBEERERESHERAF enterprise BEEZOERER
Pt N
HIEBELE
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T BEERBRE
RERETEHERRLDA enterprise
A3
EBELE
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36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 TEMBEAT M)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2023 and RZZBZ_=FR_T__FXA
2022: (Continued) =+ RNAIZEEKN B AR
T (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
*kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SR, R R ERTRER Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R TERER FrEEREE
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
RETIREBRRAA] B8 shares of HK$ | each B R
10,000 B B AR E (B
BTz &R
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& EZBRBRE
BN TR BT B R *Y enterprise
BRAA B A3
*SEBELE
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited #wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& BEERRBRE
EEMRETEBRHY enterprise
BRAF] F B A3
*SEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& EEBRBRE
EBREITBRBIRE enterprise
BRAA B A3
EBELE
NHH Technology Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 38.86 38.86
Company Limited 55 shares of HK$ | each of personal care products
BEMZERAF 2,000,000 & & & BEEBEAZEAm
HEIET
2 E Bk

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands are
limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China are

wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held
by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of

their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

SRR

36 TEMBELT (&)

GEX

@

(b)

©

(d)

FIBERERRRBERA ST
KIZzWERREREREER
Al o PrE R BRI 2 KB L
A RINEREDRE

FrA L5z 2B LR R Ngai
Hing (International) Company
Limited R AR RIEEF AN - HH
ARRBEEE -

RELBRHAEROA([3RE]) &
REREERN < HEANEE2 A
REHN KRB EED K > TE
R EF A 2 BT A WU B
RARGBERHERABZRAG K
Mg ERE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited IAZR & BB 478 TR K

A

SRR OFEARBATEEZ
FO 2 BAE -

FRIHEERAUAFEEER
KERFEIBRAKEEEFE
ZEBHD 2 ARAMBLRF - E
ERRIFEI EAMME R B 215
FLEBNILE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37 @I BE(RER)

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
Financial assets - loans and receivables BKEE -BERREKRK
Trade and bills receivables BEoRERREWERE 22 217,246 233,142
Other receivables and deposits Hitfr s kize 23 7,174 14,995
Restricted bank deposits R Hl KB RITIF K 25 36,082 38,797
Cash and cash equivalents BehkIReER 25 150,637 178,926
411,139 465,860
Financial asset at FVOCI BERAARBEFAHEMEZE
WEWHMKEEE
Financial asset at FVOCI BASEETAEM
THWENHBEEE 19 2,344 2,943
Financial liabilities - fair value through HMBEE-RAREE
profit or loss FEBBEEIER
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTAE 24 135 296
Financial liabilities - other financial liabilities A E - HiiKg
at amortised cost 8E REBHKE
Trade and bills payables BRMNARENEER 26 56,769 87,336
Other payables and accruals HitvfE R RBRER 27 24,535 24,508
Lease liabilities HERE 16 9,928 13,214
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 338,922 392,827
430,154 517,885

188
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

38 XRFIMNEEEBRRR

=mED
HEAME

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHER THETT
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A RRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGIEN 106,556 128,06
Other receivables R IGR 154 275
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEeFHE 312 416
107,022 128,752
Total assets HEE 169,733 191,463
EQUITY S
Capital and reserves attributable to AEBRREGERER #E
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 36,920 36,920
Share premium I A B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve H A fE (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE & (a) 7,063 10,340
Total equity BER 168,960 172,237
LIABILITY afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals TEIRE M 773 612
Bank borrowings RITEE — 18,614
773 19,226
Total equity and liability BEZREE 169,733 191,463

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 28th September 2023 and was signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung

St B R
Director Director
EXE Ex

ARAMEBEERERCHESFER
—ET=FAAZ+TNABH#EZE I

—_

REREFEERE

HUI Kwok Kwong
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 38 XAFIMNEEBBXRER
THE COMPANY (Continued) b E )
Balance sheet (Continued) BEEEX(E)
Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company BsE : (@) AR B EEBEE

Other reserve -

contributed

surplus
(Note)
Hib ke — Retained
BB earnings Total
(M &) REBEF R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TR TR
At st July 2021 WZZEZ—5+HA—H 62,511 20,682 83,193
Profit for the year ARE T — 9,964 9,964
2020/2021 final dividends paid XN=ZT=FT )/
R FEREPKRE = (14,768) (14,768)
2021/2022 interim dividend paid =T/
R FEHPEHRE - (5,538) (5,538)
At 30th June 2022 R-ZE-_—#XA=+H 62,511 10,340 72,851
At Ist July 2022 RZZE-=F+tH—H 62,511 10,340 72,851
Profit for the year RE 7 F) — 4,107 4,107
2021/2022 final dividend paid TR=—T=—/
T _FEREARKRE = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2023 RZEZ=FA=T1H 62,511 7,063 69,574
Note: BHsE -
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the RNRDNAFZEYMER B JINgi Hing
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at (International) Company Limited A B AR 4
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount WMBHGAREESEANGIRES
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the BT YR EEME 2 =% - A&
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying BrEHMBLRTIENEAGEANE QA
subsidiaries. TEEEBEAARN -
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable BEGEE—NQAN\—ERNa%E B8
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay $AUSKTRE BIEEAEERERE
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the () A AR A BB X 1E T 2R 4 K
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable B ELEEEIMzAE KA T
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its AEZIUSHEECEEMEREGR
Y — issued share capital and share premium account. REBBRTRAERMD®REB 23 - 8l
) ' ZARATBEERENREAUEHE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMBHME

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial REERBEREYRFETF 2 ¥4E -
years are as follows: BERBEWOAT :

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
EUSHUOE  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
a o  TAT TAT TART TAT

Results B
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity N EIRER B

holders of the Company (EB#8),/ &7 (52,007) 56958 89,865 (6,212) 7,806
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEMBE 991,269 1,227,658 1,102,156 994,839 1,019,873
Total liabilities BEBE (454,765) (568,612) (482,012) (504,318) (507,280)
Non-controlling interests FEFE il A (25,155)  (33,787)  (31,727)  (25,199)  (23,874)

Capital and reserves attributable to 72 &) & SR FE(L A& A
the Company's equity holders K 511,349 625259 588417 465322 488719
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EFEMER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
As at 30th June 2023 and 2022, the Group had the following investment

BREWF

RZB_=RZZB-_Z_FXA=+H K

properties in Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland SEBBEUREERPEAM ZKEY

China"):

As at 30th June 2023

%

R-ZBE-Z=FXA=+H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
gl b 31k Rz HESIE FEEER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES /R ER
TEREEG-FHE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB A WA AR EE9-15 5% R AR H 10-1657
BETERL2BAE 312F ¢B7R8E - 812
8BZE 1041234 56 7TR8E IR
8% - 2IB3ERKRA 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China  Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland T HER
TEREEMN— China
PR URPEAEREREMEFHER BN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [HES %2 8
B —BB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB A MNP AR EE9-155% R AR H 10-1657
BIET AL 14 R ISHEFBEL
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES R HR

Mainland China
EETUN T o
FR i

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
o B 79 3 2K 0% 71 7 B 8 R AR B 349 5T MODO A B
AR KE 16481612 16131614 1615K 1616

ES
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued)

As at 30th June 2022

Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

REWZFE &)
R-ZB--HXA=1H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
it b 31k Ay HEHSE FEE#ER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES HRER
ITHERNEBMN—BH Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [|2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B HT 10-16 5%
BIETEPL2E4E  3B2E - 6B7R8E - 812
8ZE - I0#E1:-2-34-5-6-7TR8E IR
8FE - 1I2EB3ERKE 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland I% FHHA
THRAREEMN— China
hE A URPEAEREREMETHERA BN Z TEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [GES 2 HA
BB —FB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B AT 10-16 5%
BT EAL3 S 14 R ISHEEM
Commercial office units ~ Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%

and apartment —

Mainland China
BEMNEEM —

REAL

Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES B
Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
FR B 3K 2 T R R [ RS 349 SR MOD O A R B
R K E 16421612 1613 1614 16151616

z=
=23
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Company Directory

DE)EmE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Head Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: https://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel.: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

No. 25, Chiling Section,

Bolan Avenue, Honjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

No.| I3, Siheng Road, Zhuanyao Industrial Zone,
Wentang, Dongcheng District, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 769 2316 6636

Zip: 523121

Fax: +86 (0) 769 2316 3608

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BRETHERAH
(REREZBATZERAF)
ERAREE

&b

58N

REEH 1057
HETEFRLCIEIE

BEE ¢ +852 2693 1663

{EH : +852 2694 0877

484 © https://www.nhh.com.hk
BFEFHAE ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BRI

B

AR

KITET

N EEER

TaE - +852 2660 0208
fEH : +852 2667 483

R

REE AR AFE

REEm

EHEEEXE

TREEER 25 5%

EEE - +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
EEARSE © 523940

fH @ +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

EE A RHANE

R RS RIE
TSmO | 1398
BEih 1 +86 (0) 769 2316 6636
T ARSR : 523121

fEHE : +86 (0) 769 2316 3608




Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.,
Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 532 8727 3101

Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110

Company Directory

DE)EmE

BEMNRER
hEARAFME

BT

R

MATIEE 161 5%

HR R B R 5 A 1806

EEE © +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
FILARTE - 510620

{EHE : +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

FERER
R AR LRI
Em

f L PR 1800 5%
JKEIRBRKE
612 E B

BEE 1 +86 (0) 21 6440 3351
B4R ST - 200235
EE : +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

EiEmgt

AR AFE

iabionil

SHIXER

FAE KB 81005

B - +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
T ARGE - 201707

fEE : +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

BB
REARKME

FEBMNEBERMAEE
AR(BM)BERIXER
T : +86 (0) 532 8727 3101
FEILARGE - 266300

{BH : +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Company Directory

DE)EmE

Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.. +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

No.16-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 592 609 321 |
Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,
Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026

Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

P

RERSBE
REE AR HFE
P9Il R EP T

JE el = 4

BEM=T 2R

BEE2919 5%

EEE : +86 (0) 28 8328 5026
FRERAR IR - 610051

{EH : +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

E R

PEEAREFE
rEEEMT

AR

HERRS 16-4 5%

T : +86 (0) 592 609 3211
FRERAR SR - 361027

fEH : +86 (0) 592 609 3600

REWERE
hEARKME
RAEM

L]

BREE &35 A FE 2204-2206 =
T % - +86 (0) 22 8752 8026
FIARSE - 300073

{BH : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chonggqing Office: EEREE
Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center, AR AFE
No. 28 Minquan Road BEEMRTR
Yuzhong District, Chongging, R 2858

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

EHN RS FA 03601 F
EEE © +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
FRERAR SR - 400010

{EHE : +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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